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China Fortune Holdings Limited

P ERERERBR A A

Corporate Profile

RAEEIT

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16 February 2000, and successfully transferred
to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The
Group has a strong shareholder background and well operational
and professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom
Equipment Company Limited which was a company selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

In 2019, Beijing Feiying accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company and can consolidate Beijing Feiying’s results into the
Group’s accounts. The Group tap into the used mobile phones
and mobile app market in the PRC.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and

services providers in the region.
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Chairman and Executive Director
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Corporate Information
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CHINA HEAD OFFICE

Room 9008, Yong Xin Building
887 Huai Hai Zhong Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai, PRC

SHANGHAI OFFICE

Room 328, Xin Mao Lou

2 Tai Zhong Nan Lu
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone
Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong law:
Franki Ho & Associates

As to Bermuda law:
Conyers Dill & Pearman
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
China Construction Bank
China Merchants Bank
ICBC (Asia)
CORPORATE WEBSITES
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Business Structure
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China Fortune

Holdings Limited

RERY

Investment

BRR%

Telecommunication
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Resources

BE - WERMHERR
ESTILEBHHRR
Diversified business
development through
investment,
merger and acquisition
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Exploration, exploitation,

refining and asset investment

of mineral resources
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Trading and distribution
of telecommunication
equipment
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Corporate Milestones
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The former trading arm of the
Group - Express Fortune Limited
(“EFL”) was founded by Mr. Lau Siu
Ying and his brothers in Hong
Kong.
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JUL

1992

Commenced Fortune

Telecom Group’s franchise
retail business in the PRC.
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HERETEER -

EFL became one of Nokia’s

earliest authorised
distributors in the PRC.
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FEB
16

Listed on the GEM Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
8040).

REEBZFGEM L
(BB - 8040) °

DEC

A US$12 million syndicated
loan was successfully
arranged.

X% HE—1812,000,0003
TLZREE -

Completed the acquisition
of 51% shareholdings of

Synergy Pacific (Holding)

Limited (“Synergy Pacific”).
TR RIEES
BRRE ([REEH] )
2 51%HE

()

MAY

Fortune Shanghai was
acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management
Committee as one of the
best enterprises for
commodity sales.

KB DR HBINSRER
REEZESRAEMINE
BEBLEZ—-

SEPT

A HK$160 million
syndicated loan was
successfully arranged.

R I % HE—T8160,000,0007%5
TLZIREER




Annual Report 2019 7
Y S

—=

Corporate Milestones
EEERE

SEPT FEB

A US$16 million syndicated loan
was successfully arranged.

BRI Z2HE—1816,000,0005% 7T 2 SR E
o

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Company Limited (Bkif & 1RE 58
& HIE/AF) and completed the

acquisition in October 2007.

TR R T B2 R A R
INFEIZ 51 %RRHE » Wi —HEEE

MAR

NOV szl

The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of
mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.

AEE AT F$2,100,000 BB E 7
FB3860,000,00078 TLALFIHATER °

Fortune Shanghai increased its
share capital from US$6 million to
US$25 million.

RiE B BERZH6,000,000F T4
HNZE25,000,0005 7T ©

SEPT

Formed a joint venture with
TeleChoice International Limited for

the Nokia fulfillment business.

JUN

EiTeleChoice International Limitedfi
V—EEEAT ) EFEEETAEE

DEC

For a consecutive year, Fortune

Shanghai was again acknowledged
by Shanghai Waigaoqgiao Free Trade
Zone Management Committee as
one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.

BEE_F 0 RIELSBEE LS
SRANEERZESEABMEE

BREMEZ—-

Successfully completed the

acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited, and the disposal of 46%

OCT
8

—_

shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.
B3 e Uk EE Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited,2 100%% 1 . H & &
R 246%RHE -

Name changed to China Fortune
Holdings Limited.

FRRTEREZRRABRAF -

___@__@_________

JAN
26

JAN

Listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
110).
RBEBBRZAERLET (R
AR5 - 110) -

Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.

HRE=ERYEE EE

SEPT

Successfully obtained the
Fulfillment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.

RIS BT A T 8
BIE X EEDIHE

DEC

23

Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a Celestite
(Strontium), Zinc and
Lead mining site
situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman and Chiewc Exé_éutive Oﬁicer' I
FEFEFEHTE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to our shareholders the consolidated results and
prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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REVIEW

Looking back to 2019, the China economy is showing a sign of
slowdown resulting from the US-China trade war. Although the
mobile phone market in China was still strong but its growth
was obviously slowing down resulted from the trade pressure
exerted by the US in the trade war, denting the economic growth
in China. Customer’s focus is expected to shift gradually from
the functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience
and, in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain
stores have advantages under the high internal consumption.
In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the mobile phone
industry for decades, and the potential for mobile phone related
business development is surely enormous and sustainable. The
Group have tapped into the used mobile phones and mobile
apps market in end of December 2019, and would continue to
strengthen its major business area including big data, mobile
phone operating system and mobile internet.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2019, due to the slowing down of global economy, the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
decreased by approximately 50% to HK$108.5 million when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2018. Loss for the
year amounted to HK$32.8 million when compared with profit of
HK$10.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in China. As China is one of
the strongest countries in terms of economic performance, and
with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Although there is keen competition in the industry, development
potential is still enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen
our existing relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for
further cooperation opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement
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China Fortune Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in the
mobile phone business, the Group has tapped into the used
mobile phones and mobile app market during 2019. Pursuant
to the change in control of the board of Beijing Feiying on
December 2019, it shall be accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Company, its results can be consolidated into the Group’s
accounts and would be reflected in the accounts of the Group
in coming years. We expect there will be a potential growth from
our businesses, particularly from Beijing Feiying, which features
services like trading of mobile phone industry including trading in
second-hand mobile phones and provision of marketing services
through an online platform which connects the mobile phone
manufactures, telecom operators with physical retail stores.

But the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020 would
foreseeably have an adverse impact in the worldwide wholesale,
retail environment as well as our business. There is an ongoing
concern on customer’s spending power and weakening global
economy. In 2020, the Group will continue to actively seek and
grasp market opportunities and increase the depth and breadth
of our sources of revenue in order to generate satisfactory
returns for shareholders on a continuous basis.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all staff members and management team for their
dedication and contribution, and to our shareholders and
business partners for their support. Looking forward, the Group
will keep a closer watch on changes in the market and seize
development opportunities that can generate maximum value for
the Company and its shareholders.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 17 July 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
total revenue of HK$108.5 million, which was approximately
HK$107.6 million or 49.8% lower than the revenue of HK$216.1
million reported in 2018. The decrease in Group's revenue was
primarily attributable to the decrease in revenue from mobile
phone trading business in PRC.

The Group’s revenue was entirely derived from mobile phone
trading business in both reporting years. During the year ended
31 December 2019, revenue contribution from Zhejiang was
HK$103.4 million representing 95.3% of the total revenue of the
Group, whereas Shanghai contributed HK$5.0 million or 4.6% of
the total revenue of the Group.

The decrease in revenue was due to the economic slowdown
and sluggish consumer spending resulted in slower sales in
2019. China’s consumers pulling back on spending have taken
a toll on its mobile phone retail market which is stalled and
declining, the sales of the Group were scaled back in 2019 while
an expansion of wholesale business network benefit the Group’s
performances in 2018.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 52.7%, from HK$2.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to HK$1.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease of gross
profit was due to the scaled back in Group’s performance on
mobile phone trading business in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

Due to China’s consumers pulling back on spending and the
keen competition in the mobile phone retail market, the Group’s
gross profit margin was decreased slightly from 1.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to 0.9% for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such decrease was also due to the increased
bargaining power from telecommunications chain stores and
mobile carriers which purchasing mobile phone.

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$0.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of HK$0.4
million or 44.8% when compared to HK$0.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease of commission income incurred from trading business
and other miscellaneous income.

Other gains and losses

We had a net gain of HK$23.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 and a net loss of HK$16.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the net loss mainly consisted of impairment loss
recognised in respect of plant and equipment of HK$5.2 million,
an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$6.0 million, an impairment
loss recognised in respect of trade and other receivables of
HK$4.3 million and net fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$0.1 million. The turnaround
from net gain to net loss in current year was due to a write back
of interest payables of HK$11.9 million and recovery of bad
debts of HK$14.1 million were recognised in 2018, while no
such gain was recognised in 2019.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs were approximately HK$20
thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of approximately HK$9 thousand or 81.8% when
compared to HK$11 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2018. The increase was mainly due to the increase of advertising
and promotions and entertainment expenses during the current
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 15.7% to
HK$17.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 when
compared to last year of HK$14.9 million, which was mainly
attributable to the increase of depreciation and salaries and
allowances.

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2019, finance costs
amounted to $0.6 million, while no finance costs was recorded
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase of
finance costs was due to the imputed interest on loan from a
related party and interest on lease liabilities in current year.

Share of results of associates

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no share of results
of associates was recognised (2018: loss of HK$0.7 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2018, loss on disposal of an
investment of an associate was recognised, while no such loss
was recognised in current year.

Income tax expense

As set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
income tax expense amounted to HK$35 thousand for the year
ended 31 December 2019, as compared to income tax expense
amounted to HK$0.1 million in last year.

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the factors set out above, the Group’s share
of loss amounted to HK$26.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, as compared to HK$7.8 million of profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company in last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AT

(Loss)/earnings per share

The basic loss per share was HK2.84 cents in current year as
compared to the basic earnings per share of HK0.85 cents in
last year. The diluted earnings per share was HK0.85 cents for
the year ended 31 December 2018, while no diluted loss per
share is presented as the effect of any potential ordinary shares
is anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group held various
unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund investment
engaged in developing mobile devices and operating system,
manufacturing and distribution of mobile devices and digital
asset investment service platform in different jurisdictions and
engaged in different business.

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund investment
were reclassified at financial assets as fair value through profit
or loss as at 1 January 2018 as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

Inventories

Inventories decreased by 72.6% from HK$95 thousand as at
31 December 2018 to HK$26 thousand as at 31 December
2019 was due to an impairment loss on inventories of HK$95
thousand was recognised in current year. The Group will
continue to apply strict policy in inventory control in the future.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group decreased by 60.9%
from approximately HK$42.2 million as at 31 December 2018
to approximately HK$16.5 million as at 31 December 2019,
primarily due to settlement of other receivables. No impairment
loss on prepayments paid to suppliers was recognised during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$18.2
million as at 31 December 2019 as compared to HK$26.6
million as at 31 December 2018, without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation. During the
year, there was no material change in the funding and treasury
policy of the Group. The Group considers there is no material
potential currency exposure as the majority of its revenue and
expenses are derived and incurred in Renminbi in the PRC. It is
the treasury policy of the Group to manage its foreign currency
exposure whenever its financial impact is material to the Group.

Trade and other payables

The trade and other payables of the Group decreased by 21.4%
from approximately HK$39.0 million as at 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$30.7 million as at 31 December 2019, due
to a decrease in other payables to third parties along with its
business.

Bank borrowing

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowing
amounted to HK$4.5 million, while no bank borrowings as at 31
December 2018.

Liquidity and gearing ratio

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$14.0
million or HK$0.02 per share when compared to HK$40.6
million or HK$0.04 per share as at 31 December 2018. As at
31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$6.9 million when compared to net current
assets of HK$12.6 million as at 31 December 2018. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had a current ratio of 0.90 times
(31 December 2018: 1.21 times). The gearing ratio of the
Group, defined as the ratio of the total long term liabilities to
the shareholder’s equity, was 1.32 and 0.43 as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of leasehold improvements amounted to
HK$0.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$0.2 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2018: nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or
associates

The Corporate Action and the Acting-In-Concert

Shanghai Yuanjia, and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Other Beijing Feiying Shareholders started
contemplating on implementing change in control of the board
of Beijing Feiying in March 2019. Pursuant to the change in
control of the board of Beijing Feiying which became effective
on 27 December 2019, the board of directors of Beijing Feiying
shall comprise five members, of which two had been appointed
by Shanghai Yuanjia, Mr. Gao Fei has undertaken to vote in
concert with Shanghai Yuanjia by virtue of a signed Acting-in-
Concert Agreement entered into between Shanghai Yuanjia and
Mr. Gao Fei, and two which had been appointed by the Other
Beijing Feiying Shareholders. As a result of the change in control
of the board of Beijing Feiying, Shanghai Yuanjia shall be able to
control the respective board of directors of Beijing Feiying. As
such, Beijing Feiying shall be accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Company. No consideration has been paid or is payable by
the Company for the change in control of the board of Beijing
Feiying and there has not been any changes to the respective
equity interest held by Shanghai Yuanjia and the Other Beijing
Feiying Shareholders. The change in control of the board of
Beijing Feiying were agreed between Shanghai Yuanjia and Mr.
Gao Fei after arm’s length negotiations and allow the Group to
step up its participation in the operations and strengthen the
corporate governance of Beijing Feiying.
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Beijing Feiying is previously engaged in the recycling of used
mobile phones. In addition, Beijing Feiying has also entered
into a cooperation agreement with the mobile and internet
conglomerate, Tencent, for Tencent’'s new mobile application,
which helps users transfer data from old phones to newer ones.
Under the cooperation agreement, Beijing Feiying receives 70%
of revenue generated from the mobile application by users.
As stipulated in the cooperation agreement, Beijing Feiying
is currently mainly to assist in the promotion of the mobile
application to consumers.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group did not make any significant investments.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The 2017 Subscription

On 23 December 2016, the Company entered into a conditional
Subscription Agreement with the Subscribers respectively,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to issue and the
Subscribers have agreed to subscribe totaling 85,716,000
Subscription Shares. On 1 February 2017, the Company
completed subscription of 85,716,000 new Shares. After taking
into account the share issue expenses of approximately HK$0.2
million, the net price per Subscription Share issued is about
HK$0.35. The net proceeds, after deducting the share issue
expenses, received by the Company is approximately HK$29.8
million.
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Up to 31 December 2019, 100% of the net proceeds had been
fully utilised as general working capital by the Group, with

breakdown as follows:

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses
- Salaries and allowances
- Directors’ fee
- Professional fees
- Rental expenses
- Office expenses
- Travelling expenses
- Rates and management fee
- Utilities
- Insurance
- Others

Total
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Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has in total 71 employees
as compared to 25 employees as at 31 December 2018.
Employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
job duties and market trend. The Group provided staff welfare
and fund contribution to its employee in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no
material change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and
share option scheme during the year. The Group has a share
option scheme under which the Company may grant share
options to the participants, including directors and employees,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

Subsequent events
Outbreak of novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the country. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date on which this set of financial
statements were authorised for issue, the COVID-19 outbreak
has been intensifying and spreading across the PRC, weighing
on the PRC wholesale and retail markets. There is an ongoing
concern regarding the development and government advices
related to, or restrictions on, travel to and from regions, which
hinders customers making sales order, disrupted the logistics of
the supply chain for our distribution and the movement of goods
and people within the PRC. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the change of situation and make timely response
and adjustments in the future.

The Group does not have other significant subsequent events.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year. (2018: Nil).
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII™), there were approximately 1.6 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of 2019. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,

“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in past years and the issuance of 4G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus, large mobile telecommunications chain stores are
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile
carriers for their bundled mobile phones.

Although China, the world’s largest mobile phone market
reached a saturation point, the 5G economy has seen a huge
growth. The boom of 5G mobile phones comes as China
launched 5G commercialisation at the end of 2019 with the
nation’s telecom operators rolling out their 5G data plans.
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Looking back at 2019, China’s mobile phone market declined
and scaled back due to the international trade conflicts
escalated, the uncertainties of economic development and
China’s consumers pulling back on spending. The decline is
expected to continue in the coming year due to the impact of
COVID-19 outbreak in China.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
As for the PRC market, its economy growth was slowdown in
2019. Yet, the continuous development of mobile phone market
business model intensifying competition in the retail industry and
the uncertainties arising from the emerging US-China trade war
presented challenges the development of the Group’s operations
and performance.

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
5G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications and the
Internet also led to rapid development of value-added business
which requires the retail channels to advance from a pure sales
platform to an integrated service platform. In this regard, the
large mobile telecommunication chain stores have advantages.

Mining Business

The Group has once commenced mining site exploitation system
in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the expiration of
a b-year mining operating permit on 25 September 2012, Sifa
Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years
(the “2-year Permit 2012-2014") from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC (FF#E AR LRI L &IJRE) (“MLR”),
under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out exploration
activities only, but not exploitation activities. The 2-year Permit
2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.
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On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by
MLR for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25
September 2016 under which a restriction was added that no
exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration activities.
Such restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was
basically the same as the previous mining permit which was
approved by MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining
exploitation permit is a continuing process.

In the course of applying for further extension after expiry on
25 September 2016, the Department of Land and Resources of
Hubei Province of the PRC (the “DLR”) issued an announcement
(the “DLR Announcement”) published on 29 December 2017 in
respect of the deadline of application for renewal of the expired
mining operating permit.

In the DLR Announcement, the DLR informed the owners of
the expired mining operating permits to furnish the application
procedures for the renewal before 28 February 2018. If the
owners fail to do so, they are responsible to deregister the
mining operating permits before 31 March 2018 by themselves
or the DLR will de-register the permits instead. The Group
was unable to furnish the application before the deadline and
therefore, instructed the Group’s PRC lawyers to clarify with the
DLR the Group’s situation as to whether the Group would be
allowed to submit a new application for the mining operating
permit in future.

Despite great efforts to ascertain with the DLR by the Group’s
PRC lawyers, the Group had been unable to receive a clear and
favourable reply in this regard. As a result and prudent measure,
a full impairment of the mining right of HK$174.6 million and
related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million had been made
whist all the related deferred tax liabilities of HK$41.1 million had
been derecognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Despite the fact that the above mining right will no longer have
any bearing on the financials of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, the Directors strived to pursue the ultimate
stance of the DLR in respect of the above mining right in the
interests of the Shareholders.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group, through
its PRC lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone calls
and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018 for the
clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR did not make
reply to the Group’s enquiries.

According to an online search made by the Group’s PRC lawyer
to the Ministry of Natural Resources of the PRC (F 2 A R LN
B EREB) on 20 February 2020, the status of the mining
operating permit has been displayed as “expired”.

Therefore, the Group’s PRC lawyers have come to the opinion
that the mining operating permit has already expired and will be
unable to be renewed and hence be deregistered eventually. For
the avoidance of doubt, such opinion will not affect the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Prepayments to suppliers and related legal proceedings

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$24.9 million was recognised for the prepayments in the total
sum of HK$33.7 million made to two mobile phone suppliers,
one in Guangzhou and another one in Chongging by a subsidiary
of the Group in Shanghai.

The said subsidiary commenced arbitral proceedings and, on 14
January 2019, has obtained the final arbitral award of, amongst
others, HK$19.8 million, being the prepayment against the
Chongaing supplier. In the course of such arbitral proceedings,
a sum of HK$10.2 million has been repaid by such supplier.
After obtaining the arbitral award, the Group instructed PRC
lawyers to enforce the arbitral award, but was informed by the
PRC lawyers that, according to a notice by the Chongging
No.5 Intermediate People’s Court dated 25 October 2019, after
checking through the national wide network of the PRC Court
for enforcement against the Chongqging supplier, the Chongging
Supplier had no assets left to be enforced against.
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The said subsidiary also commenced legal proceedings for
recovery of the prepayment of HK$14.8 million against the
Guangzhou supplier in the People’s Court in Guangzhou,
China. After the final hearing of the trial of the legal proceedings
instituted by the said subsidiary against the Guangzhou supplier
in the People’s Court in Guangzhou, the PRC, on 28 April 2019,
judgment has been entered into against such supplier in the
sum of about HK$12.7 million together with default charge and
legal costs. The Guangzhou supplier had filed an appeal against
such judgment, but the appeal was subsequently withdrawn
by the Guangzhou supplier. Therefore, the judgment is valid,
effective and executable for which enforcement proceedings
was commenced against the Guangzhou supplier. However, as
informed by the PRC lawyers of the Group, according to a notice
issued by the People’s Court of Huangpu District of Guangzhou
dated 4 June 2020, after checking through the national
wide network of the PRC Court for enforcement against the
Guangzhou supplier, the Guangzhou supplier had no remaining
assets that could be subject to enforcement proceedings to be
carried out by the said subsidiary.

Notwithstanding the above situations, the Group will explore all
possible means to recover the prepayments.

No impairment was made in respect of these two prepayments
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Prospects and Outlook

The China economy is showing a sign of slowdown resulting
from the US-China trade war that has simmered in 2019.
Though the phase one interim agreement has been made in
December 2019 to prevent a further escalation of the trade war,
it is expected that the next round of the negotiation between the
US and China would get tougher once they begin tackling the
thorny issues on which they had clashed. Furthermore, in early
of year 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 in China followed
hard on the heels of the phase one’s US-China trade truce. The
Group expect the consumption and retail segment will continued
to be affected from the double blow of the US-China trade war
and the COVID-19 facing an uncertain future in the coming
years.
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In 2019, the mobile phone market in China was still strong but
its growth was obviously slowing down which resulted from the
trade pressure exerted by the US in the trade war, denting the
economic growth in China.

However, the continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled
by a high internal consumption. As the world’s largest mobile
handset market, there were approximately 1.6 billion handset
subscribers in the PRC which benefit from preferential mobile
internet traffic policies. The significant increase in 4G users, 5G
users and Internet users implies that there are huge business
opportunities in both mobile application and mobile commerce.

China was currently the world’s largest 4G network and
continues to strive for further expansion. With a goal to add
new 4G base stations in previous years to improve signal
coverage in buildings, elevators, and other indoor space, as
well as on railways and expressway. Since the Group has been
in the related mobile phone industry for decades, big data,
mobile phone operating system and mobile internet would be
surely the key business areas that the Group is interested in. As
the technology for 5G telecommunications networks matured
and was ready for takeoff demand for related equipment has
remained robust. Recent developments in the China market
along with anticipation of aggressive activity from the mobile
phone supply chain have caused us raised our Group short-term
5G forecast and expect that China will become the lead market
in terms of 5G volume. In light of the increasing uncertainties
in the global economy, the Group will closely monitor changes
in the economic environment and will be proactive and seize
opportunities in Hong Kong and ASEAN trading markets.

Pursuant to the change in control of the board of Beijing Feiying
which became effective on 27 December 2019, Beijing Feiying
shall be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company, the
Company can consolidate Beijing Feiying’s results into the
Group’s accounts. The Group can tap into the used mobile
phones and mobile apps market and could also share a greater
profit of Beijing Feiying and this would be reflected in the
accounts of the Group in coming years.
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Beijing Feiying has also entered into a cooperation agreement
with the mobile and internet conglomerate, Tencent, for
Tencent’s new mobile application, which helps users transfer
data from old phones to newer ones. Under the cooperation
agreement, Beijing Feiying receives 70% of revenue generated
from the mobile application by users. As stipulated in the
cooperation agreement, Beijing Feiying is currently mainly to
assist in the promotion of the mobile application to consumers.

As at the date of this report, Beijing Feiying and Tencent has
yet to conclude on the renewal of a new agreement due to
the delay in the commencement of negotiations caused by the
COVID-19 Outbreak, upon expiry of the Agreement on 15 April
2020. Notwithstanding the expiration of the Agreement, Beijing
Feiying and Tencent are in discussion for a renewal and Beijing
Feiying is still providing the relevant services as stipulated in the
Agreement to Tencent up to the date of this report, and may lead
to the decrease in revenue of the Group if the Group’s services
to Tencent is no longer required.

But the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, the pessimistic
sentiment is developing regarding the macroeconomic and
the worldwide wholesale and retail environment, which would
foreseeably have an adverse impact on our business. It has been
intensifying and spreading across the PRC. Weighing on the
PRC wholesale and retail markets. There is an ongoing concerns
regarding the development of mobile phone markets, which
hinders customers making sales order. Moreover, in view of the
weakening wholesale and retail markets, customers would tend
to make orders with lower average selling price, which would
possibly lower our Group’s gross profit.

The Group is actively looking for further opportunities which will
further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 56, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampoa Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a master degree of science in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. WANG Yu, aged 54, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.
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Mr. GAO Fei, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in December 2019. Mr. Gao holds
a Bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration from Hebei
Polytechnic University. He is currently the founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Beijing Feiying. Mr. Gao served as the
cofounder and Chief Operating Officer in Langfang Hongkun
Network Technology Co., Ltd. which developed and operated
the earlier domestic web games and chess games. He also
served as the co-founder and Chief Operating Officer Beijing
Sihai Interconnection Network Technology Co., Ltd., respectively,
from March 2006 to May 2008. From June 2008 to August
2010, he was the Vice President of Information Technology and
Internet Division of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600100),
he was responsible for product operation and sales of computer
Internet business. From August 2010 to May 2013, he was the
co-founder and Chief Operating Officer of Beijing Shengsheng
Tianxia Technology Co., Ltd., he was responsible for product’s
manufacturing operation, research and development, and
sales. He worked as Chief Operating Officer of Chetuobang
(Beijing) Mobile Technology Co., Ltd. from May 2013 to June
2014, responsible for the company’s products; research and
development, operations, personnel, sales, etc. Mr. Gao has
vast experience in business management, mobile phone and
internet industry and telecommunication business development.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. BAO Kang Rong, aged 57, was appointed as an Non-
executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Mr. Bao holds
a bachelor degree in mathematical economic management
from Shanghai Normal University and an executive master
of business administration from China Europe International
Business School. Mr. Bao has vast experience in business
management and telecommunications business development
and is currently one of the partners of Eagle Funds (& &
%), which was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
in 2012 focusing on investments in Mobile Internet, Internet
of Things and Internet+industry. Furthermore, Mr. Bao is the
director of Shanghai Communications Industry Association ( /&
BIETTEWE ) , the Vice Chairman of Shanghai Communications
Manufacturing Industry Association ( /8 BEREERE), a
member of Shanghai Youth Federation ( /85 A€ ) and a
member of Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association ( E/8 5

FEEZRBE) .

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 54, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.
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Mr. LAM Man Kit, aged 44, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam
graduated with a bachelor degree of Business Administration
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has worked in an
international audit firm and various public and private companies
in Hong Kong, with over 20 years of financial, accounting
and auditing experiences. Mr. Lam has worked in the finance
department of the Company from 2007 to 2013, with his last
position as company secretary and financial controller of the
Company. Mr. Lam is a company secretary of Mayer Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1116), and a company secretary of Fuguiniao Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1819).

Dr. LO Wai Shun, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Dr. Lo
holds a bachelor degree in sciences and a master degree in
philosophy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
a doctorate degree in Physics from Brown University, United
States of America (“‘U.S.A.”). He is also Adjunct Professor of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Visiting Professor of
Peking University (School of Innovation and Entrepreneurship).
Dr. Lo is currently a general partner of DL Capitals, an angel
investment fund focusing on disruptive and exponential
technologies and has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various business fields including intellectual property
commercialization, business models innovation and technology
transfer. Dr. Lo had served as a non-executive director for
various listed companies in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2005.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai, was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company, the Financial Controller of the Group and the
authorised representative of the Company in April 2018. Mr.
So holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. So has worked in an international audit firm and various
public and private companies in Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. So
has extensive professional and senior managerial experience
in financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one
Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of whom all are independent as defined under the
Listing Rules. Independent Non-executive Directors constitute
more than one-third of the Board. The Company has received
from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. Brief biographical particulars of the
Directors are set out on pages 27 to 30.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 36 to 41.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
five Board meetings were held in 2019. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and interim report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2019 is set out below:

EFEEHARLERE

ERUTHHAUBNAL T2 B REER
B R - —F - A ERBRTRRE
ERRH - NEFEERL EFEENEAT
B REARTEERFHHERE KBR
IR R (M) R R R R o
EREERFATHEFEERRER L+
KB WHE R AR EE -
EEFRRRERGANREFE TARE
BEFEM - FA AAFEFOREBBIRE
ROTEERTORER EHEERE L
-

RIB-NF ZEFHFEESGAZLCE
T

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HiE
Directors 2= EEXE
Chairman and Executive Director TERYITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2 NE R A& 5/5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wang Yu T &/EHE 5/5
Mr. Gao Fei* m kL 0/0
(appointed on 27 December 2019) (RZF—NFF+ A+ +HEZF)
Non-executive Director FEHITES
Mr. Bao Kang Rong R E 4/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FRME LT 5/5
Mr. Lam Man Kit MBS & 5/5
Dr. Lo Wai Shun BuEt 5/5

* *

No Board meeting was held after Mr. Gao Fei was appointed as an
Executive Director on 27 December 2019.

BREER_ZE-NF+_A-TLHEEF
RPTEER BERETEESER-
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Lam Man
Kit, an Independent Non-executive Director. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary of the
committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the committee
members within a reasonable time after the meetings. The full
terms of reference are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

EEZETE

EXZECRU=AZES NEBARAER
ZHEBE UHPATEEEAET -EEXE
CERHEENERBTERERAE - SEFZ
BezH@Aas BEELEDEINMT:

FHESE
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

TRERBES

FHZEenFAZEAKREEZESXEHRE
RIBERWT

Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members RE eERH
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Lam Man Kit (Chairman) MBS (F/E) 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan EREE L 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun BuEt 2/2
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying B NE A& 2/2

Two meetings were held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 165. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 194. At 31 December
2019, there were no outstanding shares in respect of which
options had been granted. Details of the Company’s share
option plan are disclosed on page 187.

HHEBSRENBRITMASH & LES
MHBEE TEHRTEERSAERAR
IHEERRMA-FHERSRRALAERM
HipHTEERSRER AR FWERRE
(TR -

EEMe RRREMNFEBNE165E T - BT
EREBEEREBZEMWNE1MERE R
—NWF+—A=+—8 HECRLBERER
B2z EBITRG -EEAQREREASSIFE
WEREI8TE
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Lam Man Kit, an Independent Non-
executive Director. The Company Secretary acts as secretary
of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources are made available
to the Audit Committee when independent legal or professional
advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.

il
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The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year. The ERZEERFRAERTRAGH RaWE

Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee EREBEZZEEER 2 T ESR T 2k
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The MR RERN AT FHRLEERRER
draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee ERS B A ERBERNEEAT2BEZES
members within a reasonable time after each meeting. K8 -

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well ERZEeRNFACHANERSZEENELE
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as EEIBERAT

follows:

Membership and Attendance

Members

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Man Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HES
RE BBRE
BIYFHITES
M A () 2/2
R E T 2/2

BiElL 2/2
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2019. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year

as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members

are as follows:

Membership and Attendance

Members

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

Three meetings were held in the year, in which members of

the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and

TRERBES

REZEENFACHENERSZEENELE
eRIBERET
REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HES
RE BBRE
HITES
BINESE (FE) 3/3
T Bix4E 3/3
BIYFHITES
R E T 3/3
MRS SE AE 3/3
BEEELT 3/3
REZEENTFAERTZREH TLEX
BEEHNESFTSCRE RERANK AR
TESFZEme

composition of the Board and discussion of appointment of

executive director.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 83.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
29 May 2019, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$950,000. In addition,
HK$50,000 was charged for non-audit service, which was for
interim review service.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai (“Mr. SO”), was appointed as the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) on 3 April 2018 and is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.

The Company Secretary is mainly responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and its committees to prepare agendas
for meetings and to prepare and disseminate meeting material
to the Directors and committees’ members in a timely and
comprehensive manner; ensuring every Director complies with
the Board’s policy and procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations; and ensuring accurate records of Board/committee
meeting proceedings, discussions and decisions are recorded.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. SO has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year. His biography is set out on page 30 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Group’s existing corporate governance framework and the
significant risks of the Group were summarized as follows:

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation of
an effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

e To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring the implementation of an effective
risk management and internal control systems;

e To oversee the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis;

e To perform an annual review to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

e To oversee the management/responsible party (“responsible
management”) in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Management

e To design, implement and monitor the risk management and
internal control systems;

e To perform risks identification assessment which might
threaten the strategic objectives set;

e To review the risk and risk level and advise on any matters
which might be raised by employees and the Group;

e To assist external consultant to analysis and appraise the
adequacy and efficiency of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems; and

e To coordinate all the risks management and activities
process and in compliance with Listing Rules and report
periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

e |dentified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk Assessment Questionnaire was used to
document the risk identified by the responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

e |dentified the existing controls and analysing risks in terms
of consequence and likelihood in the context of those
controls. The risk analysis considered the range of potential
consequences and how likely those consequences were to
occur. Consequence and likelihood might be combined to
produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response

e  Categorised the risks into low risk, medium risk and high
risks;

e Determined the strategy to handle the risk; and

° Developed the risk register and internal control audit plan
and determined the frequency of review and control testing
on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  On-going communication of monitoring results to the Audit
Committee which enables it to assess control of the Group
and the effectiveness of risk management during the year,
including:

— Risk questionnaires completed by the management,
risk register and internal audit plan; and

- Fact finding report with recommendations on the
review and testing of internal controls on certain
operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group’s
internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the
Company to:

e Perform the risk assessment based on management
evaluation on identified area and report the findings and
recommendations to the management; and

e  Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls
and perform testing of internal controls on certain operating
cycles and areas in accordance with the Company’s
Internal Control Audit Plan.

The Company is considering the recommendations on the
internal audit findings identified by the external consultant
and expects to complete the implementation of the aforesaid
recommendations in the upcoming financial year.

During the year, the Board conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were adequate and
effective during the year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is fully
aware of its obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 and the Listing Rules. The
Board has adopted a policy which contains the guideline to the
Directors and officers of the Company to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated to public in an
equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts
or other forms of advantages from any person or organisation
doing business with the Group can be accepted by any
employee. Business partners and customers are reminded from
time to time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the
Group from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on company website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a company website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders BEAE

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful ARARIZBRRBEFRSRE-—FEERTE &
platform for direct communication between the Board and EFeHRRARBER - MRERSLERE
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each BEARY LB 2 FHEREEBEILRER -
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2019 annual general meeting (“2019 AGM”) was held on 29 ZE-NEFRERAFAE ([ ZE—NFREA
May 2019. The attendance record of the Directors at the 2019 FREERZZE—NFRAZ-ZTNLHET T
AGM is set out below: EFHR T - NEREBFRE 2857
PUNNE
Attendance/
Number of
general meetings
HE
Directors = BREXEXE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu T A%HE 1/1
Mr. Gao Fei m REAE 0/0
(appointed on 27 December 2019) (RZF—NFF+ A+ +HEZF)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Bao Kang Rong R E 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIRIE LT 1/1
Mr. Lam Man Kit MR BE S A 1/1
Dr. Lo Wai Shun BHEEL 1/1

*  No general meeting was held after Mr. Gao Fei was appointed as * BREERZZE-NFTZAZTHRAEZRE
an Executive Director on 27 December 2019. BRITEERR MERITREKRS -

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2019 AGM. RARZINEREMTIEEE —_ZE—LFRE
BERg-
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).

TRERBES
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i

REABRESE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including

a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company

(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(0

(i

(ii)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.

BRERBRRASELRHEEZZRF

MR RBNARBRRBFRE ([RRBFK
D EERERBR VAKRBERAREZET A
BEKLEFENMT

(i)

(i

(i)

BB ARNEETE  JHHENVEERRERE
EREZMBERFRBEEET VR =_+5H
Z— K i) T A100B R R 2 R R ATHER
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ZREBR MARBRABERRERS LE
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IR THBiE1,000F 2 Rt & -
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EREZBERBFREETATLRAME
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If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-06, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.
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R HERERBRE

China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present the Environmental, Social, and Governance (‘ESG”)
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

This ESG report is prepared with reference to the Appendix
27 - Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The information disclosed in this report is derived from the
result of internal statistics and analysis of the Group’s internal
management systems.

The Group is committed to fulfilling its environmental and social
obligations while striving for economic growth and creating value
for the Company’s shareholders. We focus on strategic priorities
in terms of maintaining a peaceful natural environment, creating
a harmonized working environment and sustaining an ethical
business environment. Through this ESG report, we hope to
continually refine our corporate strategy for sustainable business
growth, and deliver long-term value for our stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are distribution and trading of mobile
phones and related accessories, development of marketing
and after-sales service network (“Mobile Phone Business”)
and mining and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals
(“Mining Business”). Since there were minimal activities in the
mining business, this report only covers China Fortune Holdings
Limited, Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd and #
DREERBMRAERAA.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a change in
control of the board of It RRE B FERFEFR A [ (“Beijing
Feiying”) comes to a deemed step acquisition from associate
to subsidiary. Considered the change became effective on 27
December 2019, the Company decided not to cover Beijing
Feiying in this ESG report.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group continues to maintain the relationships and
communicate with its key stakeholders. We have identified our
employees, customers, suppliers, investors, shareholders and
communities at large as our key stakeholder groups. In daily
business, we communicate with different key stakeholders
through various channels such as conferences, electronic
platforms and public events so as to understand the concerns of
various stakeholders. To formulate the operational strategies and
ESG measures, the Group takes into account the expectations
of stakeholders and strives to improve its performance through
mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting in creating
greater value for the community.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We value your feedback on this report. If you have any feedback
or suggestions, please contact us at info@chinafortune.com.

A. THE ENVIRONMENTAL

Our strategy towards the environment is to minimize the
impact on the environment with sustainable operations.
We place strong emphasis on environmental protection
by maximizing the efficiency of resources and reducing
pollution. Our sustainable practices encourage employees
to be more considerate of the environment by savings on
energy consumption and use of materials so that impact on
the environment and natural resources can be minimized.

A1. Emissions

Given the nature of our businesses, we do not
contribute directly to greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emission, discharges into water and land nor the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
However, we recognized that consumption of
electricity, paper and petrol at workplaces and by
motor vehicles account for our major indirect GHG
emissions.

R HERERBRE
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GHG Emissions BERBHERK

During the year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas FR - AEBEZREREHNBREH
emissions reduced approximately 1.25 tonnes from —ZT— \FHI33.82ME R 1 1.25MF = —
33.82 tonnes in 2018 to 32.57 tonnes in 2019. The T NFHB32.57W - F AR ERBH
detailed summary of GHG emission for the year is W2 AR ET AT -

shown as below:

Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of

Scope of GHG CO2 Emission (Tonnes) gross floor area
BRERBEHE — & b BBk (W) BE-W/ SFTHREDERE
2019 2018 2019 2018

Scope 1 - Electricity consumption

HE1-FEHHEME 29.15 28.44 0.00536 0.00500
Scope 2 - Petrol consumption
E2— hHE 2.49 3.33 0.00060 0.00081
Scope 3 - Paper Consumption
#HEI-MRHE 0.93 2.05 0.00017 0.00032

Total GHG emissions

BERBHMES 32.57 33.82 0.00613 0.00613

Notes: B &

1. Petrol consumption: according to purchase volume of 1. AHERE:-RBEAARAEREECZA
gasoline and diesel of company vehicle; MR GRERTHE

2. Electricity consumption: according to electricity bills 2. BHER BEAAFTKICIEEE
received by the Company; FTE

3. Paper Consumption: according to purchase volume of 3. HMERER BEAREE=EE-

paper.
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To reduce the energy consumption and the amount
of carbon emission, we have implemented a number
of measures to mitigate such consumption and
emission, we reinforced our management of energy
conservation in our offices through the ventilation
system with a stabilized room temperature at 25
degrees Celsius, as well as reminding employees
to turn off any computers, printers, light and other
office equipment that are not being used. We try
to use daylight wherever possible, and choose
energy efficient equipment during procurement. We
encourage our employees to travel by public transport
to reduce carbon footprint. We advocate a green
lifestyle by growing plants in the office. Awareness of
environmental protection among our staff was raised
through the promotion of green office culture.

Relevant important laws and regulations including
the “Energy Conservation Law” and “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” are
strictly complied with.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in our
operation. Non-hazardous wastes from the Group’s
operation is mainly the paper waste. During the year,
the consumption volume generated by the Group is
shown as below:

Category of Non-hazardous waste

BEBEEVER e (1)
2019

Paper Waste

HREED 0.19

Quantity (Tonnes)

R HERERBRE

BRVERBEREERRERE BME
E— R B R DB R R
M-BRMEBARPAENARER
g ERIERIERK2SE  WiREE
BRENTEAKBETMENR T
B BN REMIB AR A e E
BEARER - RPN AITIE R TER
EAAX WRRERIZEEAERY
HHRE BMEBEERLAKR
BT A UBADHRY - BIEERHEA
ENEEEYMIREEEEE - HKM
BREEZORAZTXLIREETH
RREH -

BPERETHBER AR LA
B THHRERA] & [HEARKM
BIRBIREE] -

BERRY

AEBEZEENBELRERERY -
AEBEEELZEEERVIER
MRERY - FR AEBEEL ZHR
BRI

Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of
gross floor area

RE-W/SYHFREEER

2018 2019 2018

0.43 0.00004 0.00007

The Group has implemented paperless processing in
its internal communications. In order to reduce paper
consumption, we encourage employees to use duplex
printing and copying and therefore, led to a drop of
0.24 tonnes of total paper waste in 2019.

AEBMERERPERE HERKICE
o AR DEFRERE  RMEEREEE
AEmITEREH BN _T—IF
4R SR BE B WD R 0. 240 ©
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BRR - HERE

A2. Use of Resources

Energy saving tips and guidelines are in place as a
direction on the efficient use of resources throughout
daily operations. Our strategy is to reduce resources
used in daily office operation, through wise use of
energy and water, wastage and paper consumption,
as well as promoting the practice of recycle, reuse,
reduce, and replace. We recognize the importance
of transitioning our operations to bring upon more
sustainable options.

Use of Resources

BERER

Fuel Efficiency
PREL RS

Materials

kel

Water
7K

AW E

A2. BIRERH

BAIRBHRREIRIER M FE - AR
AE2ETHEEARERER B
HY 2R B /5 435 38 AR S 10 158 P RE R KoK
BEYMRERER URESHRBRE
& BEYER RIERRERERE
BfmmRS BERAEEEMERNE
IR o AR R B AP R0 & B A R
FEARHERREENESE -

We are committed to replacing old vehicles with more fuel-efficient vehicles.

BRI E BT R AEAMHAENTE-

We encourage employees to use telephone conference whenever possible to reduce
the carbon footprint of business travel.
BMEBEENRATEATEABTEES  UELZROGKE -

We encourage to use automatic pencil leads and ball pen refills.

BMSBERESMBCRERRIREE -

We encourage employees to bring their own water bottles instead of using paper
cups.

BAPIE R B B B B0 A B AR -

We promote wise use of toilet paper.

AP 6 B AR 25 {6 AR R 4 ©

We advocate the use of double sided printed to reduce paper wastage.

BAREEEITEHLUR D IREBAR -

We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.

TP RE LR K BE BRI MR 7K A BB 40 A K
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Use of Resources

BERER

Energy

a3
BE T

Resources

BIR

R HERERBRE

We maintain the room temperature at 25 degree Celsius to converse energy.
BMBEERRZTEAEIN25E AE L EEIR

We keep the air ventilation system off if the room is vacant.

BANFEREEARERBRRZAZ-

We encourage employees to save energy by turning off lights and electronics when
not in use.

BB EEESAORER YN TEREEEELRE

We remind employees to turn off lights, computers, printers and other office
equipment after work.

BFREREN TIIRBEEEY B ITEREEMRIERE

We keep track on the power consumption record and take measures when there is
significant increase in consumption.

P B R T ) H RS £k K b0 3R B KUK FE 1 N B BRERAE A

We encourage employees to reuse plastic bags, recycle glass bottles and aluminum
cans.

B EEEEMBR - DU IR K in 6 o

Recycling of printer cartridges and toners is implemented.

B EREEITERES RN S -
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A3.

Energy consumption

During the year, the Group’s consumption in petrol and
electricity were:

Energy Type Quantity
BERE Bl s

2019 2018
Petrol 1,054.13 1,412.70
U
Electricity 46,270.37 45,145.50
B

REROH 7%
FR-AEEZAURRENHERES:

Intensity - Unit per
square feet of

Unit gross floor area
BE-B{/
By BYFREAEEE
2019 2018
litre 0.26 0.34
N
kWh 8.51 7.93
TR

Due to business purpose the electricity consumption
during the reporting period has been increased
approximately 1,124.87 kWh compared to that in
2018. Regarding the petrol consumption, the Group
has reduced 358.57 litre, from 1,412.70 litre in 2018 to
1,054.18 litre in 2019.

Water consumption and use of packaging materials

The Group’s water consumption is minimal and no
issue in sourcing water for the Group’s operation had
been noted in the reporting period.

Besides, due to the nature of business, the Group did
not involve any use of packaging material and hence
the disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Since our core operations are confined to the office
environment, we do not make significant impact on
the environment and natural resources. Still, adhering
to our policy, we will review in due course to seek for
continual improvement, if any.

AS.

HREBRR REHAZEEER
ZE-N\FEEMY1,124.87F R
Ko gLy EREMS ASBEH=-F
— J\F891,412. 702 FH ik 2 358.57 A
HEZZT—NHFM1,054.130F
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

B2.

Employment

We believe that our employees are valuable assets to
the company. In order to build a harmonized working
environment, we recognize the importance of fostering
a supportive workplace for employees to grow with the
company together.

We firmly believe in the principle of equal opportunity
for all employees and this is addressed in the staff
handbook as our employment policy. We ensure that
our recruitment, promotion, compensation, training
and dismissal practices are on a fair and equal basis.
We do not tolerate any discrimination based on race,
religion, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or
other considerations deemed inappropriate by local
laws. We strictly comply with relevant local laws and
regulations relating to hiring, compensation, dismissal,
working hours, rest periods and diversity.

We respect and protect the legal rights of employees
by abiding to the local laws and regulations including
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China”,
Kong.

as well as “Employment Ordinance” in Hong

Health and Safety

Safety always comes first throughout the operation
and is the basis of success. Our health and safety
approach is to minimize occupational hazards and
provide a safe working environment. We have set up
procedures for our employees to follow in case of
typhoons and severe rainstorms to ensure their safety
during the journey from and to work. Access to and
egress from workplace is maintained unblocked. First
aid box with emergency contact is in place. We did not
find any work fatality cases during the reporting period.

R -HERENR
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B3.

Apart from physical health, we also take care of the
mental health of our employees as well. Paid annual
leaves higher than the statutory requirement are offered
to enhance the work-life balance. In addition, we have
lunch gathering during special festivals such as the
winter solstice and the Christmas Eve. We arrange
birthday parties for our employees to maintain their
spirit in a pleasant working environment.

In order to comply with the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances”, all employees are covered by insurance
against any accidents.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning within
our employees and puts emphasis on their holistic
development. All new joiners are required to undergo
an induction briefing regarding corporate culture,
company’s policy and procedure, health and safety,
basic knowledge about the Group’s operation and
system. Measures on professional training, enhancing
leadership and talent team building are available
for employees to achieve their personal goals while
growing with the Group.

A performance appraisal is in place to review the
employees’ performance annually. This provides an
opportunity between the company and the employees
to communicate so that we can meet employees’
expectations and objectives.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and processes
are enforced to verify the legal proof of age before
commencement of work. The Group has strictly
complied with the Labour Contract Law of PRC, the
Hong Kong employment laws and other relevant laws
and regulations to avoid child or forced labour and
other potential irregularities. We do not adopt any kind
of forced labour including prison labour as supplier.
During the reporting period, we did not find any issues
with child and forced labour.

B5. Supply Chain Management

One of our procurement principles towards
sustainability is to ensure that our procurement system
can manage any environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. In order to maintain sustainability
as well as quality, our strategy is to build a long-term
relationship with suppliers. We continue to monitor the
existing suppliers’ performances to ensure their quality
and performance is up to our standard. New suppliers
have to undergo assessment and evaluation before
being adopted.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials, we
require that components used by the suppliers be
in full compliance with environmental protection
requirements, in accordance with national and industry
standards.

B6. Product/service Responsibility

Product and service

Quality is the key component to take shape of
customer satisfaction. With regard to product
quality, we ensure that all products should comply
with national standards including China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) in terms of testing certificates
issued by accredited laboratory.
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We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving
force for our continual improvement. Once a complaint
is received, we will take prompt actions to investigate
the issue and carry out remedial action plans.

Customer privacy

Customer information is treated as confidential data in
the Group. Only core staff of relevant department are
granted permissions to access according to different
hierarchy and locations. The Group has the right to
executive disciplinary actions on employees who
violate the rules stipulated in the employee handbook.

Intellectual property

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual rights
by different measures. We actively monitor any
infringement in terms of counterfeit goods across
the country with people’s court and public bodies.
In addition, we renew the registration of any expiring
trademarks and patents based on the need of our
business. We strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations, including the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.

Advertising and labelling

Systematic review and approval process is in
place before advertisement launch to the market
to safeguard accurate presentation and protect
customers. Appropriate safety warnings are attached
on the product packaging for consumers’ information.

We are in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations including “Advertising Law of People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests”. There are no breaches of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in connection with our
products and services provided during the reporting
period.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B7. Anti-corruption

BS8.

Anti-corruption is the cornerstone of the business and
sustainability, which at the same time the most material
topics rated by our stakeholders. Stringent policies
are stipulated in the employee handbook in relation to
compliance with the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”,
such as soliciting or accepting any advantages in the
business operations, to ensure employees’ actions
abide by our internal regulations. Procedures are
established to minimize corruption risks related to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in the
business operation. Internal control mechanism is in
place for monitoring. We did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices during the
reporting period.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, we are responsible for driving
a positive impact to the community. We create job
opportunities and promote economic growth in
the local communities through our business and
operation. We encourage employees to participate
actively in voluntary services during their leisure time
to help people in need. We are under the process of
formulating a policy on community engagement.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 84 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yu
Mr. Gao Fei
(appointed on 27 December 2019)

Non-executive director:

Mr. Bao Kang Rong

Independent Non-executive directors:

Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Mr. Lam Man Kit
Dr. Lo Wai Shun

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) and bye-law 87 of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Gao Fei and Dr. Law Chun Kwan shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, respectively.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Exgs 54

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
BlNERE (TRIEE]) PREEERAE (W)
Beneficial owner

BB A

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)

EFRVTEFTRBUFATETZEHEER
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EERTHRARRROKEERD 2
B
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BES REERAIE3521KF B 2 B a1
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B PR OB AT
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Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
e #T HERQAAERT
ZTEKREA BEEDHE
188,300,013 20.52%
259,996,285 28.33%
448,296,298 48.85%




Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2019.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, there were no share options
outstanding.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2019, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EEEN
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
e T hHERQAAERT
FTERRER 230) ZERHE RE2BD L
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 20.52%
255 & 2RERER (1)
Beneficial owner 259,996,285 28.33%
ERBEAA
448,296,298 48.85%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 20.52%
FREESE XEHERESR (MiE2)
Notes: P 5

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 69% and 19%, respectively, of the Group’s
total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 96% and 38%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 31 to 51 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy of
the PRC and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied
that such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 52 to 63 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. Save in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
has not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Outbreak of novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the country. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date on which this set of financial
statements were authorised for issue, the COVID-19 outbreak
has been intensifying and spreading across the PRC, weighing
on the PRC wholesale and retail markets. There is an ongoing
concern regarding the development and government advices
related to, or restrictions on, travel to and from regions, which
hinders customers making sales order, disrupted the logistics of
the supply chain for our distribution and the movement of goods
and people within the PRC. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the change of situation and make timely response
and adjustments in the future.

The Group does not have other significant subsequent events
after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.
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APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the
staff for their outstanding contribution towards the Group’s
development. The Board wishes to sincerely thank the
management for their dedication and diligence, and they are
the key factors for the Group to continue its success in future.
Also, the Group wishes to extend its gratitude for the continued
support from its shareholders, customers, and business
partners. The Group will continue to deliver sustainable business
development, so as to meet its business objectives for 2020 and
realise higher values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 17 July 2020
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 28152239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREZRERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 210, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As described in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
included in the Group’s trade and other receivables as at
31 December 2019 were advances of HK$3,366,000 (the
“Advance”) to Mr. Dai’'s mother (“Mrs. Dai”). Mr. Dai is a non-
controlling shareholder of one of the Group’s subsidiary.

As described in Note 37(a) to the consolidated financial
statements included in the Group’s amounts due from related
parties as at 31 December 2019 was amount of HK$8,960,000
due from a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dai (the
“Debt”).

The Advance and the Debt were unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2019,
the directors of the Company considered the credit risk of the
Advance and the Debt have not increased significantly since
initial recognition and the loss allowance for the Advance and the
Debt were measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses. In the opinion of the directors, the 12-month
expected credit losses in respect of the Advance and the Debt
were immaterial and therefore no loss allowance has been
recognised as at 31 December 2019.

During our course of audit, the directors of the Company
have not provided us with adequate information about their
assessment conclusion that the credit risk of the Advance and
the Debt have not increased significantly since initial recognition.
In addition, no reliable and supportable information in respect
of the estimation of the 12-month expected credit losses of
the Advance and the Debt were provided to us by the directors
of the Company. We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess
the appropriateness of the directors’ expected credit losses
allowance assessment on the Advance and the Debt. Given
these scope limitations, we were unable to determine whether
the directors’ estimation of expected credit loss allowance on
the Advance and the Debt has followed the Group’s accounting
policies as detailed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, which are required by Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Recognition of expected credit loss allowance in respect of the
Advance or the Debt as at 31 December 2019 found necessary
would increase the Group’s loss for the year and its net
liabilities as at 31 December 2019, and would affect the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” section above, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the expected credit
loss allowance assessment on the Advance and the Debt.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

AREXEE

MREZFESRBEESNEEHE RAR
BEEERAYBZGAVBREAER/AERL
FE - ZEFREESEREREAVBRER
FEBEABETRE BETEHZFER
REEBEAL -BIREBELCEE| —fifd
MEEN BEEEE NXAANEERRESF
BETEENBERERER

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREEZEH EECERNMNEERRSEE

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods
FRERHEEZRERR

Please refer to notes 4 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
EREA A I RE N iF4K8

The Group’s revenue was derived from sales of  Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to sales of

mobile phones. goods included:
EEEZKNEREBHEEHE - EERERENHEC WABRET IR EE:

(i)  inspecting sales and purchase agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of delivery and assess
whether management recognised the related revenue
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies,
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
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B X EN R E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EECERNMNEERRSEE

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods
FHERHEEZRERER

Management inspected the contract terms and
determined the amount of revenue recognised
during the year is dependent on the point in time
when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally when the goods are delivered
to and the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to customer.

EEERTANKRN TETFARR KNGS
EERTEREETELPZ2RRAB (—RAEMR
RNFEPURBREIEBAZEBREBZEEFE) M

):F_o

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the
Group and errors in the recognition of revenue
could have a material impact on the Group’s

results.
ERBEERENAEREZEFEIHREY &
%.ZEK‘EJ&{&L& E@uuu;&%TiT E\WIZ%

BMERERTE-

(i

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(iv)

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
recorded during the financial year had been recognised
properly by inspecting the transactions selected with
relevant underlying documentations;
MR ERMRFEFREARZHERS
RUBEXHREMEELRS:

ERERER AR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
before and after the financial year end had been
recognised in the appropriate period by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentations; and

MERT AN REFERNEZHERIREERNEE A
BR - ARARBUBBAXHELBRMEEZRS &

reviewing if there is any significant adjustments to
revenue during the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentations.
EHREPANZ KRR ERELEMNERAE
BZEBH WARBEXH B ARFEE-

TR AR
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the HKFRS issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate Number: P02410
17 July 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising

on translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

W zm
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HE R KA
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BREER

MR E BB
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IEFE (BR),8H

ZAN/NETEZ 2SN
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FEFE B MR an
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Notes

P &

10

11
12

16(a)

16(b)

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHT
108,455 216,104
(107,444) (213,966)
1,011 2,138
506 917
(16,367) 22,984
(20) (11)
(17,266) (14,928)
(605) -

= (647)
(82,741) 10,453
(35) (148)
(32,776) 10,305
(49) (80)
(32,825) 10,225
(26,093) 7,799
(6,683) 2,506
(32,776) 10,305
(26,595) 5,916
(6,230) 4,309
(32,825) 10,225

(2.84) cents 1l

0.85 cents 1llI

N/ATE A

0.85 cents 1l
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At 31 December 2019 R-Z—hE+_-_A=+—H

Non-current Assets
Plant and equipment
Mining right
Right-of-use assets
Investments in associates
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Club memberships

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

FRBEE
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Amounts due from non-controlling & W Fff B A 7 3F 422 #il 4

shareholders of subsidiaries
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Tax payables
Bank borrowing
Lease liabilities

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets

Total Assets less Current
Liabilities

BRIR 2 FRIA
BAFEFARREZ
MBEE
ReMREFEY
REBAEE
JER & 5 BR A S Ho A
J& A BR 3K

FET B8 A £ 2 KA

JEAST B 188 22 ) SR 4% 1 1%
BRIR 2 FRIA

JE 1 1R

RITIEE

HEERE

hE(BE) EEFE

EERERABRE

Notes

B 5E

17
18
19
20

21
22

23

24
37(a)

25

21
26

27
37(b)

25

28
30

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
82 5,709
1,176 -
= 498
4,691 5,350
874 877
6,823 12,434
26 95
16,503 42,182
24,849 -
3,638 3,435
921 536
18,177 26,563
64,114 72,811
30,688 39,039
24,796 11,301
3,426 3,488
6,334 6,415
4,480 -
1,307 -
71,031 60,243
(6,917) 12,568
(94) 25,002
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P ERERERBR A A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMERRE

At 31 December 2019 R-Z—hE+-A=+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET FET

Capital and Reserves EXREE
Share capital J% < 29 91,778 91,778
Reserves ] (77,786) (51,191)

Equity attributable to owners of ZAATEE AEERER

the Company 13,992 40,587
Non-controlling interests FEE I 1 #E 2 (82,617) (33,151)
(18,625) 7,436

Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 707 -
Government grant B 1 Bh 32 5,600 5,700
Amounts due to related parties ERBEALTZHIE 37(b) 12,224 11,866
18,531 17,566
(94) 25,002

On behalf of the Board REESFE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2 /NERE FREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

E EE



At 1 January 2018
Profit for the year
Exchange differences arising on

translation from functional currency

o presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Imputed interest on the loan from
related parties (Note 37(bfii)
Lapse of share options (Note 31)

At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019
Loss for the year
Exchange differences arising on

translation from functional currency

fo presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Deemed step acquisition from

associate to subsidiary (Note 33(a))

At 31 December 2019

Annual Report 2019
—TNFHR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

RZE-\£-A-H

EEEF

EPEACEA
MEECERER

FREAUNEE

REBEALZESZ
GRS (M37(0)Gi)
BRELK (H31)

RZE-\ETZA=t-B
RZE-NE-F-8
EEER

By ERAEERSIEE
fELZERZR

FREENALE

ERERTIHBARNEA

E-SRE (M)

RZE-NF+ZA=t-H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Share Non-
Share Share Special  Translation  Statutory option Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FEHE
Bx  BBEE  HHRE  BERE  iRES fE  HfERE  BHER 4% BE  REER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn Thn TEn T FhL TEn TEn
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i (Note iv) (Note v) (Note vi)
(k) (mski) sk (k) () ()
91,778 417,391 2,481 68,908 30,132 991 - (578,824) 32,857 (37,460) (4,603
- - - - - - - 7,799 7,799 2,506 10,305
- - - (1,883) - - - - (1,889 1,803 (80)
- - - (1,889) - - - 7,799 5916 4309 10,225
- - - - - - 1,814 - 1,814 - 1,814
- - - - - (991) - 991 - - -
91,778 417,391 2,481 67,025 30,132 - 1,814 (570,034) 40,587 33,151) 7,436
91778 417,391 2,481 67,025 30,182 - 1,814 (570,034) 40,087 33,151) 7436
- - - - - - - (26,093) (26,093) (6,683) (32,776)
- - - (502) - - - - (502) 453 (49)
- - - (502) - - - (26,093) (26,595) (6,230) 32,825)
- - - - - - - - - 6,764 6,764
91,778 417,391 2,481 66,523 30,132 - 1,814 (596,127) 13,992 (32,617) (18,625)
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share
capital in excess of nominal value.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into

presentation currency.

The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’
losses of the PRC subsidiaries.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the imputed interest portion calculated by
the effective interest method on the loan from a related party which
was provided interest-free.

P b :

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

i aBERBRASEBLEEZRE-

Bl (R4 FE T U RE B B & B 2 B F (B B A 2
AR —NAANFETEEEARS KRBT ET
ZEOEERZE®E-

BERBERRERABIEB CEE AEFEEN
BB R EETEE WEEE.

EERSEEARAEBEREARANE
(TP E KR 2B ARz B BEDMRE
EUARREHEZETPRENELARBEFE
ZEE-

BRERELFRECROERRTEZEBREZ
RNFE FBERGEE P RERM EAR AR B
ERNR RS2 T BEE— SR -

Hit#EERRE —BREALTZ A FEER
INEBRFZ A EZEENS /D -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETERAT (BE) % F (82,741) 10,453
Adjustments for: P
Interest income B HA (87) (45)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENFERX 29 -
Imputed interest on loan from RKE—BHEEALTZ
a related party BERZHERNE 576 -
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRATEGFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss MR EE N FEEBE 108 519
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEZRATFEFT AER
fair value through profit or loss W EEEE 69 -
Impairment loss recognised RIFERRZAEEE
in respect of inventories 95 1,221
Impairment loss recognised HEWE ZERA R E A
in respect of trade and FE W AR SRR 2 BB E 1B
other receivables 4,256 23
Impairment loss recognised BB & EBERRERSE
in respect of plant and equipment 5,166 -
Impairment loss recognised MEREEERR CREERE
in respect of right-of-use assets 831 -
Impairment loss on goodwill & 2 R EE B 6,005 -
Reversal of impairment loss HE—REEE
recognised in respect of T8 1 /I8 1R
prepayment to a supplier BB EEREE (118) (363)
Share of results of associates DB E AR 2 EE - 647
Recovery of bad debts U 2152 BR - (14,083)
Recovery of write down of inventories 7 &0 2 = (370) (1595)
Write back of trade payables & 1~ & 5 Bk 5] [E] (23) (3)
Write back of interest payables JE A5 1) B i ] = (11,922)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BE REETE 1,215 211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 533 -
Gain on deregistration of an associate i #H — B E & QA 2 = (24) -
Loss on write-off of plant and BB K i 2 518
equipment 1 -
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade and
other payables

Tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net cash inflow from deemed step
acquisition of a subsidiary

Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of plant and equipment

Payments to acquire plant and
equipment

Decrease in amount due from
an associate

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

EELSEBCEERERE

r &R

JE W 75 B 3R e EL A e U AR 3R
A ()

J&A 5 5 B R S B b A BR K

R ) /4
E#BIA

REZDMAREFHE

REREH

B A B

BRE-—TUE-—RNBARZ
BEeRAFE

BERATVEAABRZZ
MBEE

BEBE M&RE

WRE RS N Rt 2 3K

JE W — T B 2 R B SRR R

REEH (FA) e
REFH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTExT FH&TT
(14,479) (13,497)
370 882
22,584 (29,706)
(21,544) 25,267
(80) (47)
(13,149) (17,101)
87 45

282 260

= (1,550)

= (13)

(693) -

- 2,382

(324) 1,124




Annual Report 2019
—E-NER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due from
related parties

Repayment of principal portion of
the lease liabilities

Advance from a related party

Repayment to a related party

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

BMEEH
JE U B 38 A £ 2 FRIRSE IN

HEREAZHD ZER

KB —RBEEALZBK
EE-—RWEALZIFA

MEZHFEREFE

RERBRESEE N (RD)
8 h0F 8

FNZRERREEEY

EERD s YE

FRZBERREEEY

ReRRESEBUEHRIN

Re LRTERF

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
(2,795) -
(551) -
11,401 45,270
(2,757) (20,608)
5,298 24,662
(8,175) 8,685
26,563 18,364
(211) (486)
18,177 26,563
18,177 26,563
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41,
respectively.

—RER

KRB AREBRE-NN—FRQFE
(i) TaRETIMR Y 2 BERE2ER
REl ARAZBRONRBEABMEXFHAE
BRAR ([BERAT]) LMo ARF 2B AT
RBEERERAT AN REBE RS FHMK
3 2 ‘A AlFuture 2000 Limited » KR &2
AMMEREREEEEMB 2 UL TEF R
[RRIER] — 8N

ARBZYEEESARE (ARE]) -
HRARRTINEE LT RTERR 4
aMBmExegNET ([BT]) 25

RRABRBREERAB - AEBZETEE
BROELEERBEA AR %
RIS RN ER RSB ARKXEA
HREEONMARENT X ZHEBR
Bl Z E W BB TE41 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2019

HKFRS 16, Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19, Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23 included in Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases is
summarised below. The other new/revised or amended
HKFRSs that are effective from 1 January 2019 did not
have any significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies or consolidated financial statements.

2. RMBERBMBREEYN ([EFEY

BwEEA])
(@) BB AEMET BB HHE LA

-R-FE-NF-A—HLEH

FEPHHREEAE 165 HE

BE (BRMEREREZES®) —
B35 TS HEE 2 THEE

BEMBRELENFOR 2T AR
18 2 B SRR T

BB G ERF19R 2 BF] 58I
Al MRS S

BB G ERIFE28 2 BR] - NEE
RAEAIRABELEZ REER

BEMBEREEN _FT-—HFE_F
—tFRMERIERBEZER
M mEEREIN  BBEPERELE
AEN A ENE12K NE
B E R ERF235% 2 ER]

RABBUBRESLRNE1FEEZ
TEBMENT AT -NEF—
A—BRRERNIETEIEFTHERT
BEMHEHREENHAEE SRR
EEMBRELBERNEAZE -
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. From a lessee’s perspective, almost
all leases are recognised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, with the narrow exception to
this principle for leases which the underlying
assets are of low-value or are determined
as short-term leases. From a lessor’s
perspective, the accounting treatment is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. The
new definition of a lease under HKFRS 16,
its impact on the Group’s accounting policies
and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16 are set
out in section (ii) to (iv) of this Note.

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY

s ER

11) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE

(i)

HRAE B BEHEERE16
R FHE

FE M REERF165
BHEESTOEEETA
EREREE TE /AR
AREETRRIE - EMAKEE
SR EAEITREE ([F
BEFEREI7HR]) &
B (ERMERERELZE
g) —REFIMEBELH
EEBERHEE BB (FH
RRELZEg) —REF155
REHE-EBBEREE (T
BRBLZAg) —2EFH27
SEatE P R E AR AR
SHHINE - {EEFEAAE R
B RBAEMOBEERMIEIK
NERERREREEE LM
ERE HHEHEEEEER
R EE SEPHEENHE
EFLHZIRABIIME SR
ShoEHBEABERE &
FHREERBEAE LG
BRI FAI7H — - B AWK
WEERFE16F U RSN
EE EHAKRESHBER
MEE B BHEHRE LR
165 IR AT AR B R
F) 38 77 DR B S B B 2 (i)

Z(v)Ef e
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A PR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(0

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised
the right-of-use asset at the amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepayments or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease, as adjustment to
the opening balance of accumulated
losses at the date of initial application.
The comparative information presented for
2018 has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The following tables summarised the
impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on the
consolidated statement of financial position

as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 January
2019 as follows:

Consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019

Right-of-use assets — increase by

Lease liabilities (current) — increase by

Lease liabilities (non-current) — increase by

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY

s ER

11) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE
(%)

(i)

RANE B BHEERE16
R HE (&)

AEBERBRFTELRE
REBYBREERIE165
TiEENHER B SRR
REMREEE BZHEEMR
B H R TR SRR R e R
ENRIEHRE ERRE
RIER BB R B R VIER
BAE - —T—\F2580
LB E R E T LAE S I 4
BREFS G ERE17HR
KB 5 s 2R 1657
BEGEFFNRERESR
5 o

TERBUBEEREVER
EEAFIHHBE T
—N\FE+ZA=+—H=E#H
EZT-NF-A—B2Z&E
B BRRRZHE:

HK$’000
THET
R-ZZE-hF-A—-HZ
mEMBRRE
EREEE—EM 93
HE&E ORE) —EM 60
HE&E (GERE) —EM 33
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PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMHHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(Continued)

The following reconciliation explains how
the operating lease commitments disclosed
under HKAS 17 at 31 December 2018
could be reconciled to the lease liabilities
recognised at the date of initial application
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019:

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 December 2018

Less: short term leases for which lease
terms end within 31 December 2019
Less: future interest expenses

Lease liabilities recognised as at
1 January 2019

The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 January 2019 is
4.75%.

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY
BHwEE]) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE
(%)

() FRAEBHBHEERE16
R HE (&)

ATHRESN —F—N\F
TZA=t—BREEES
STEREI7TRME 2 K EH
EAEEN SRR B BT
—E-hF-HA-BREH
BRRARERZEERELZ

HERB R
HK$’ 000
FBT
R—E—-—NF+=-_A=+—H
W2 &L HEAE 723
BoHEHR-_Z—-NAE+-A
—t+—HEmNEHEE (627)
B ARIRF B A (3)
RZZE—NF—A—HBERZ
HEAE 93

RZZT—NF—A—B&HE
MBERRARERZHEEARE
FIT F&E FA ) D0 S ¥ 7 AR A 38
BERFERBLT5% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

RMNEBMBHREER ([FEY
BHwEE]) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued) A. BEEUKHREENE16H -HE

(%)
HEHHESE

(i) The new definition of a lease (i)

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer,
throughout the period of use, has both: (a)
the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, unless
the lessee apply the practical expedient
which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

REFEYHHRELENE16
BoHERERSANEE
BEE (HBEE)R—K
AR (E AR —HA 4
FEHNN—HBO -EFEPR
EEERYERRE: (a)F#
EEERE#RBES KA
RBAR BB KM 2t M (o) B 1
BN BRI E E R AR
B KPR R AT — BB
NIEFID BB BEN MR -

e BHEERD AR —ERK
ZIEBINEESFHEK D
MEHmE ABEAEEE
HREORE=EHEEKS
EEZHER D W EEH B
EBRNMIFEER D NERE L
B8 BRIEATEA A ER
BEITDEEABR AR RIAH
BEBAERTHEERD
REDIFEEXD M2
EHEKD RAERIARIEHE
ERD ARINEE —HEK

\
!

d\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(ii)

The new definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for all
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

(iij) Accounting as lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify
a lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of a
lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
If a lease is determined as an operating
lease, the lessee would recognise the lease
payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset
under the lease would not be recognised
in the statement of financial position of the
lessee.

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY

s ER

11) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE
(%)

(ii)

(iii)

HEHNFHESE (&)

AEEDEETENIFEE
RO ERERE S
MEK D MMEMFHEEIEEE
o ABRSIEE —HEX

e

ERRMARE it L

BEBEEBSETERIE17
AAABREBEHELERS
7 i B [0 B B [ 3 £ AL A
SAMARNBBAREEBAE
ENHEAKEHEIRME
HE -WHEETALERA
E FAAABREESRAK
EAEE TR EN R
REAY - HAEBETHWEE
B REME AR AR
RAFER -



Annual Report 2019
—TNFHR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMHBEEMBREER ([FHBEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MmEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(a) HRAFET AT E B B EER
- R-BE-NFE—F—HAL£X(£E)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued) A. BEEUKHREENE16H -HE
(#&)

(iii) Accounting as lessee (Continued)

(iii) tEREBANETEE

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective
of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS
16 provides accounting policy choices for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at the commencement
date of a lease.

(%)

RIBEFBVHEREERE16
HomAEE (TRARE
HEXRMEBEE)ANTK
RRAKRENEREREEE
AREERE EFBEYHR
SEAF 1R AERIEHE
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BREBEENHEER ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability
(the policy to account for lease liability is set
out below); (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property or a class
of property, plant and equipment to which
the Group applies the revaluation model, the
Group applies the cost model to measure the
right-of-use assets. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liability.

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY
BHwEE]) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE
(%)

(iii) tEREBANETEE
(%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMHBEEMBREER ([FHBEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MmEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued) A. BEEUKHREENE16H -HE

(%)
(iii) Accounting as lessee (Continueq) (iii) fEBERBEAN S EE
(#)
Lease liability HEEE

The lease liability should be recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-
use of the underlying asset during the lease
term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less
any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Hi R 2 HEFRRE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as lessee (Continued)

(iv)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) re-measuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g. a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change
in the in substance fixed lease payments
or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has
applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and recognised the right-
of-use asset at the amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepayments or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease, as adjustment to the
opening balance of accumulate losses at the
date of initial application (1 January 2019).
The comparative information presented for
2018 has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY
BHwEE]) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A EEUBBREEAFE165E-HE
(%)

(iii) tEREBANETEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMHBEEMBREER ([FHBEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MmEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued) A. BEEUKHREENE16H -HE

(%)

(iv) Transition (Continued) (iv) BE (&)

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases by applying
HKAS 17 and measured those lease liabilities
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for
leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had
been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. For all these right-of-use
assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets at 1 January 2019 to
assess if there was any impairment as on that
date.

AEEER-ZZT—NF—A
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

(iv) Transition (Continueqd)

The Group has also applied the follow
practical expedients: (i) applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics; (i) applied
the exemption of not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for leases with
term that will end within 12 months of the
date of initial application (1 January 2019)
and accounted for those leases as short-term
leases; (i) exclude the initial direct costs from
the measurement of the right-of-use asset
at 1 January 2019; and (iv) used hindsight in
determining the lease terms if the contracts
contain options to extend or terminate the
leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS
16 is applied to all of the Group’s lease
contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease; and (i) not to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2019 (Continued)

B.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation explains how to recognise and
measure deferred and current income tax assets
and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax
treatment. In particular, it discusses:

— how to determine the appropriate unit
of account, and that each uncertain tax
treatment should be considered separately
or together as a group, depending on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty;

—  that the entity should assume a tax authority
will examine the uncertain tax treatments and
have full knowledge of all related information,
ie that detection risk should be ignored;

— that the entity should reflect the effect of
the uncertainty in its income tax accounting
when it is not probable that the tax
authorities will accept the treatment;

— that the impact of the uncertainty should be
measured using either the most likely amount
or the expected value method, depending on
which method better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty; and

2. RMBEBMBREEYN ([EFEY
BHwEE]) (&)

(a) BRAVFTET - AENEET BB H R
—-REZB-NF-FA—HEHX (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB RMBREERN([EBH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MmEER ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) HRAFET AT E B B EER
January 2019 (Continued) ~R-E-NF—F—HA£H (&)
B. HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax B. &2 (BBRUBHKEEREEZE
Treatments (Continueq) ) -REFBE-FEHRER
ZAREEM (&)
- that the judgements and estimates made — ERAURBELEBRE/LL
must be reassessed whenever circumstances BEHFHEREEHNE BB
have changed or there is new information TRV (S BT MO B A B K
that affects the judgements. While there are Het - BEVEFTOHER
no new disclosure requirements, entities FTORBRBISRMEEHA
are reminded of the general requirement to B BU BT 7S el R AT VB A B B
provide information about judgements and RiEztERIN— M ESK-
estimates made in preparing the financial
statements.
Except for the abovementioned, in the current i EON REBRAFER
year, the Group has applied a number of FERZEEBSHBERMEER 2B
amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations that IThZEB B -ZE—hE—AH—
are effective for an annual period that begins on or Bz BN FEHBER-
after 1 January 2019. Their adoption has not had MR S SR SRR 2 WS
any material impact on the disclosures or on the EREBWREATE-

amounts reported in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on new/revised HKFRSs
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s operations, have been issued but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

Amendments to Definition of a Business'
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Definition of Material’

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The effective date has now been deferred/removed.
Early application of the amendments continue to be
permitted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMHBEEMBREER ([FHBEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MmEER ) (&)

(b) Potential impact arising on new/revised HKFRSs

(b) MREMIET MG BB B RE

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than
on cost reductions. An optional concentration test has
also been added that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on new/revised HKFRSs

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 -
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

RMNEBMBHREER ([FEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basic of measurement and going concern

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except that
certain financial instruments are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$26,093,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019
the Group was in net current liabilities position of
approximately HK$6,917,000.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully considered to the current and
anticipated future liquidity of the Group. The directors
have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period up to
June 2021 after taking into account of the measures
below.

3.

(a)

(b)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basic of measurement and going concern
(Continueq)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and
liquidity in foreseeable future, the directors of the
Company have taken the following measures:

— obtained the undertaking from Mr. LAU and Ms.
Xiao for not requesting the Group to repay the
amounts due to them of HK$20,384,000 until the
Group is in a good financial position to repay;

—  obtained loans from Mr. LAU in June and July
2020 with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$27,300,000 which are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable in December 2021
and January 2022 respectively; and

— obtained the deed of undertaking from Mr. LAU
that, upon the receipt of written demand issued
by the board of directors of the Company, he
would provide further financial support up to an
aggregate sum of HK$23 million.

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts and with the
above measures, the directors are of the opinion that
the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due for the foreseeable future. The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

— provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

— creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue for trading of mobile phones generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from trading of mobile phones should be
recognised at the point in time when control of the products
is transferred to the customer, generally when the products
are delivered to and the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to customer. In the comparative
period,
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which was

revenue from sales of goods is recognised on

taken as at the time of delivery and the title is passed to
customer.

Commission income is recognised point in time when the
goods are delivered to customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

5%-20% or over the term
of the relevant leases,

Leasehold
improvements
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019) (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for right-of-
use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at fair value.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019) (Continued)

Lease liability (Continueq)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (ii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index
or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the in
substance fixed lease payments or a change in assessment
to purchase the underlying asset.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018) (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Intangible asset (Continueq)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.
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4.

—NF+-A=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period,
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences

in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at

arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
require a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as port of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Taxation (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when

they related to items recognised in other comprehensive

income in which case the taxes are also recognised in

other comprehensive income or when they relate to items

recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are

also recognised directly in equity.

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group has not elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. All equity instruments
are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
trade receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90

days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 365

days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, TEEHHE (£)

Financial instruments (Continued)

2R TA (&)

(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

(vi) RIEFER (£&)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
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the carrying amount of the financial liability or part Ao
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Related parties BEAL

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the a critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the operating results of the Group’s
operations and financing plan assessed using cash flows
forecasts as detailed in Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. However, because not all future events
or conditions can be predicted, this assumption is not
a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

REatHERETIRERREZ
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continueq)

Control over 1t 7% & 5 B # 5 IR 2 & (“Beijing
Feiying”)

As stated in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, Beijing Feiying is a subsidiary of the Group with
33.5% ownership interest and voting rights at end of the
reporting period. The directors of the Company assessed
whether or not the Group has control over Beijing Feiying
based on whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of Beijing Feiying unilaterally.
In making the judgement, the directors of the Company
considered the shareholders voting agreement that the
Group and one shareholder of Beijing Feiying undertaken
to vote in concert with the wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company on 27 December 2019, which enable the
Group entitles to control the 33.5% voting rights in the
shares of Beijing Feiying owned by this shareholder. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that
the Group has the ability to direct the relevant activities of
Beijing Feiying with aggregated voting interest of 67%, and
therefore the Group has control over Beijing Feiying.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of intangible asset

Determining whether intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units. The value in use calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

5.

A PR AR M R

—“NE+ZA=+—HILFE
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continueq)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowing and amounts due to related
parties as disclosed in Notes 28 and 37(b), and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure

periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider

the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based

on recommendations of the directors, the Group will

maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of

dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting

period was as follows:

Debt
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash

Equity

Net debt to equity ratio

BE
B IRERBEEEEY

b2

6. EXEMERE (&)

ARREFTTERRNERNRE -k &
FEEEAKRAREERR REESFZ
HEEER AKESEBIRERE  BEITH
B RBETHEBREEREGEHERFHE

EEEARRE-

B
i
i)

B
i
i

S

it
5d

ZEWEMAETRBETE

THRCZEERBELERNT:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FET
16,704 11,866
(18,177) (26,563)
(1,473) (14,697)
13,992 40,587

N/A TiE N/A 5@
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets MKEE
Loan and receivables at RHEBEKR AT ECER
amortised cost (including M EIR R (B 1E
cash and cash equivalents) HekReZEED)
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFAEBR
through profit or loss 2B EE
Financial liabilities MEaR
Financial liabilities REBHEKAGFECHMBAG

at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market price; and

— the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial
instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

TWMITHA

(a) £MITREESF

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
58,408 55,564
5,612 5,886
76,577 65,533

MBEERVBABEZ A TEEEN
T

—  ERERRR R E B
MGEBEZMBEEZRATFAET
SEMSREMEE : &

- HMWBEERMBAGRZAF
EBENREBEAREEELIRAIRE
EREDITMEE -

BB REISHATRAT
AFEHEERZERARERATE
HEZSMIA:

R EREEREERERTS
M E CRITHE)

2 B1REE A ME AINE
EEXABABEHAHE
(BEEZHEE) &

F3: UERABERMHHEL
BEEXREBHABE-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®MIAE(£)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) (a) =HTAEF (&)
The following table provides an analysis of financial THRIEHEATEYEZSm T EIR
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value NEFEERED 2D
hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R EPE E3K #et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAT TAT

Assets BE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF
+-B=+—H
Financial assets at fair value ¥ AFEFAERHZ
through profit or loss BB AE
- Unlisted equity —JErmRERE
investments - - 222 222
— Unlisted fund investment —FLTESKE - - 4,469 4,469
- Listed equity investments ~ — F T IRIERE 921 = = 921
921 - 4,601 5,612
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F
+-A=+—8
Financial assets at fair value ¥ AFEFAEBRHZ
through profit or loss BB AE
- Unlisted equity —JErmRERE
investments - - 1,619 1,619
— Unlisted fund investment —FLTESKE - - 3,731 3,731
- Listed equity investments ~ — T RIERE 536 - - 536
536 - 5,350 5,886
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 FRFIRNE2L 7 B EEE

or into or out of Level 3 during the year. JNEEE A Bl EE B34 o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The movement of financial instruments under Level 3

7. RI A (&)

(a) THITREF (&)

NFEERZFIRAEATR T AR

of fair value hierarchy is as follows: T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®—A—H 5,350 2,449

Initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERME BB mEER

EI5% - 1,448
Purchases BE - 1,550
Disposal & (69) -
Fair value change NEEED (510) 98
Exchange adjustments (ER I (80) (195)
At 31 December W+—A=+—8 4,691 5,350

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped
under Level 3 is determined by using market approach
valuation techniques.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o Fund administrators’ valuation for unlisted
fund investment, the fund invests substantially
in a basket of investments, such as property
development projects carried in Beijing.

o Market value was measured based on the
underlying value of the assets and liabilities of the
unlisted investments.

DHEEEIRBTZIMBEEZ AT
EBEERMSEAGMERMERE

ARFHeRIAZFEMRERTE
T

s EHSEBAYNFLTESREZ
BE ZFESTEREN &
FHRE PRI RETZE
EFEIEAE -

e REFLMREZEENRBEZ
HEEEAEME.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost approximated
their fair values as at 31 December 2019 because of
the short-term maturities nature.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents. The Group’s major financial
liabilities included trade and other payables, amounts
due to related parties and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed
to foreign currency risk primarily arising from
bank deposits, other receivables and trade and
other payables that are denominated in foreign
currency.

7. RI A (&)

(a)

(b)

EHTAEL (&)

RREHRIRHZEE  NEERE
HAARS Rz eI AZREERR
RZB-—NF+A=+—HZRA¥
ERE -

BEEEEERBERKE

AEEZIZMBEERRKRRATE
AABRmMHEE BWESERK
Ko B At S BR R ~ B U B SE A £ 2 5K
TR PR B & BRI M IR R 2 R
HAMBRERREFEY AEEZ
IZMHAEERENESRARE
i FE AN BR SRIA % FE A BRI A £ R P VB
NAPGHEGIMERR KA - ZFE R/
TAZHBRSHENERE-5H
ZETRIAZEAREBREMSAR
(SN R R M R [ fR ) ~ 2 & Rl &
MBE SRR - T XEFBAE L F R
BeBR - EEEEEEREEZE
B - DA T R K% B 0 B R SR EUE &2

i o
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(i) e
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities

&8

2019
HK$’000
FTER

HK$ BT 14,790

$¢RTA(£)

(b) BEREBREZEEEREE (&)

SRR (&)

(i) srEEEE (&)

2018
HK$'000
TET

5,062

RBEHR AEBEUNEEEE
ERNEEEUIIN BT EZ
BREREERBEZREEN
T

Assets
BE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
451 2,235

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group'’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2018: 4%) appreciation in the
functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
(RMB) against the above foreign currency. 4%
(2018: 4%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 4% (2018: 4%)
change in the exchange rates. A strengthening of
the functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
against the above foreign currency would give rise
to the following impact to the Group’s results for
the year, or vice versa.

ANEEF ZEmE BT 2 EEKE
Bk TREAIAEERRBNE
NAMEEER (ARE) N bt
INEEFHEA% (ZZF— )\F 1 4%)
ZEHEE 4% (ZE— N\F:
4% ) 7 E 1B E ¥ 51 E [E 3 7] g
HIREEBE 2T - HRED
MEBEHREEZINETEE
B WS IR UEE4%
ZEN\F4%) 2B AE
BRE WA B AR EE
HEMINEFE BEHAEEZ
FEEEELXUTEE 2N
o o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Decrease in (loss)/increase in F[E (E#E) L,
v A N

— BT

profit for the year
- HK$

In the management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
year end does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its borrowing (see Notes 28
and 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements
for details) as they are carried at amortised cost.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk as the interest rate of bank borrowing is
floating (see Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements for details).

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the interest rate risk on financial
assets is not significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

—“NE+ZA=+—HILFE

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BHEREBEZRERHE (&)

mERR (&)
(i) srEmEEE(E)

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(574) 292

(i)

ERERL BHREREYZ
R\ B NI T~ e B 7R 6 S PTTED 9 2 R
B W EABURE AT LT —F
KK E A INE Rz

FIEm

HREE (FBREAEVB®RE
Bt 5E28 % 37(b) ) LA # 85 5K 74~ 5]
B BWASEDEREBERE
NTEEFERR - NEBERRKI
R RE PR BERE
BERENERERRE WEEERE
BEEEPERFERRAR-

HRRITEE 2 A ERFEF R
(FBEREEHMEmENET28)
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continueq)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of the debtors. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significant different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

FERR

AEBZEERBRIEREEEWE
2 B SR e EL At B BR K R M BB A
o+ R Y 8B & B SRR I M AR 2 FRIA I
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continueq)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

FERR (&)
TREHRFEAEBRARZEERR

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

2019

Not past due KB HA

Less than 1 month past due BELR1ER
1 to 3 months past due BEI1Z=31E A

4 to 6 months past due BEf4ZE61E B

7 to 12 months past due BETE12M8 A
Over 12 months past due iwHA R iR 1218 A
2018

Not past due KB HA

Less than 1 month past due BEA D RA11E A
1 to 3 months past due BEI1ES3(E A

4 to 6 months past due BEfAZE6ME B

7 to 12 months past due BHITE=12M8 A
Over 12 months past due BEIRRR121E A

FEWEZERZEREEERE

Gross
ECLs rate carrying Loss
FAH amount  allowance
RS HBAREE EiERE
(%) HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THERT
0.150% 5,029 (6)
0.153% 25 -
0.193% 81 -
0.516% - -
100.00% 3,193 (3,193)
100.00% 51 (51)
8,379 (3,250)

Gross
carrying Loss
ECLs rate amount allowance

T8 HA

EiEx HEREE EEEE
(%) HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET
0.151% - -
0.154% - -
0.208% 456 (1)
0.649% - -
45.605% 1 -
100.00% 51 (51)
508 (52)
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continueq)
Credit risk (Continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

FERR (&)

BHEEBRBRXNREREBBRLER
B -ZENEEHEARRKIEBE
g 2 F 02BN B AR K
R ER B R W R R AT F I B R
MLBARZER

P 48 380 H KR (B 2 8 Ui B SR 5 BT
BHRRAELZZEEFPAER-

EAMERBEZ BUYSRREE T8
YEFER REEPRAKEASR
RIFEBERE -REBELR BEE
WIS B A& F AR IRBER
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®WMI A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continueq)
Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

R—A—BZ&E#%

Balance at 1 January

Exchange adjustments I
Recovery of bad debts 1[5 42 AR
Impairment losses recognised FARRZBESE

during the year

Balance at 31 December

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 included two
major counterparties accounting for approximately
98% (2018: included one major counterparty
accounting for approximately 90%) of the trade
receivables. The Group has closely monitored
the recoverability of the receivables from these
counterparties and taken effective measures to ensure
timely collection of outstanding balances. The Group
has not obtained collateral from customers.

R+ A=+—B2Z#&#%

(b) BHEREBEZRERHE (&)

FERR (&)

FREBRKE SRR 2 BREBR
BEHMT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
52 14,135

(58) (3)

- (14,083)

3,256 3
3,250 52

RZE-AF+A=+—0 K&
HEWESER 2 EERREFBE
MAEERE ZEFHLBR L EFER
SHFF(ZE-N\F B84
EE SERERHIN0NZ EERHHTF
7)) AKREEEYERAZERHEH
FHEL 2 BUWER S Z AT EI1E 5
I BRERE RUHE it HE R % B U5 3 g AR Uk
Blz#&#H - AEBTEEELPIEHE
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continueq)
Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2018: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with four (2018: four) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because management believes the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit quality.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographic risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC. The Group has
closely monitored the business performance of these
customers in the PRC.

The amounts due from related parties, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and other receivables
are measured at amortised cost. The credit risks of
these financial assets are considered not to increase
significantly since initial recognition. They are subject
to the ECLs model and the loss allowances limited
to 12 months ECLs. After applying the ECLs model,
additional loss allowance of HK$1,000,000 (2018:
HK$21,000) has been charged to the profit or loss
during the year.

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

FERR (&)

o REBRMEERBRERFRER
BHEE 9RMRITHBE(ZFT N
F:99% ) FRRERRT (ZF—\
F:OK) A RBELEERR
BER AREREBHEEHFIRE
BR EEEERRIT

AEEAAERS ZWEERSET
ERRAREIEREBURTEZER,-
AEBEEBERZETRAEFP X
BRE -

FEUR B E AT 2 38 R E A R
SE4E M B R 2 5 TE K H b FE U AR
R RBIER T E - ZSUBEE
ZIEERBESR LBV LERUR
WARKRIG I -ZEHE BEXEHE
BEEBEEARRMN2EABHEER
BB BIEREAER - A FERTEH
EEBBENE FRNEINGERE
1,000,000/ 7T ( =F — /A4 : 21,000
Br) B BEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®MITEH(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BEREEZERRHE (&)

(Continueq)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the equity price risk on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is not significant.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management closely
monitors the borrowings as well as the cash flows from
operating activities on timely basis.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

I 4 B A T B

AEBERE £ BRAE 7 M AS K
EBRER BEEE4FRARS —HKRE
MENEE I ER - ARENKER
REIEEPRTERLFXFABRED
RATR - EEEEREBRRER L
REFBERZEL HEAR -

ERERRANEER A EFARR
Z A EAK B E R AR T
BA AT ESHRBEEREDIN -

REBETER

EERBETRERE NEEEEY
HREEERRERAAAEEZER
HES RS RASFEY LHE
RenBRBHZHE-BEEESNE
FOERBENMEERH2RER

=
E-°

TREIAEBEITERIFITER B A
BZRBANBNEFEE - ZRRIEH
BRBZARURRSRERAEET]
BRABREZEFRHRE BEMR
RAGZBRERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

7.

(Continueq)

Liquidity risk (Continueq)

Liquidity table

2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
- non-interest bearing
- fixed rate at imputed interest
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowing
Lease liabilities

2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
- non-interest bearing
- fixed rate at imputed interest
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

“E-0F
FTERBAE
BB SESREMER &R
ENBEALZHE

-Tits

- REEN B E 2 EEME
ERHELT
FFEBMERR R
RBE
HEER

—E-N\E

FENBAR
MR SRR REMER RS
EREBALZHE

-Tits

- RIEEN B E 2 EEME
S

FEEHERR 2B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
(per annum)

i S22
BRAE
(B%F)

%

4.75

4.25-4.30
4.75

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate
(per annum)

mEFH
BB E
(BF)

%

4.75

7. @I A(£E)

(b) BBEEBEZEEERKE (&)
RBESER (£Z)

More than More than Carrying
On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total amounts
or less than less than less than undiscounted as at
1 year 2 years 5years  cashflows  31.12.2019
I
ZE-nfF
t=A
RERY  SMER SW2E  AERRE Zt+-Hz
HME DRFE BHRSE REAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TER TER TR
29,637 - - 29,637 29,637
24,796 - - 24,796 24,796
- 13,440 - 13,440 12,224
3,426 - - 3,426 3,426
4,528 - - 4,528 4,480
1,367 710 - 2,077 2,014
63,754 14,150 - 77,904 76,577
More than More than Carrying
On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total amounts
or less than less than less than  undiscounted as at
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows ~ 31.12.2018
i
ZE-N\§
TZA
RERYE  HMEFR ZR0F AEERE  =t-HZ
NS PRE  BORGF MERE REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR FEL
38,878 - - 38,878 38,878
11,301 - - 11,301 11,301
- - 13,680 13,680 11,866
3,488 - - 3,488 3,488
53,667 - 13,680 67,347 65,533
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 8. DUERR WS

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W -8

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

w BERBEBZHE

AEEERBHELRBREZETES
BARE([ETEZERRE])EMN
ZHmEBEREENE

HE-Z-AFT-A=+—ALF
B AREREAMETZED -
A RS IR T RS B A RS ¢
i B % B HRBUR A A0 S5 50 - Bt
EHEBIIHFEIE AT E A
REEETSRH P2 EE:

. BHEREED

. RIEX

MREESH CEXEERCEXAR
WERBFHATRZEERREFNGE DG
RERERzoED DHMEER
DHMEEZFERN RARBEROE

ERAEZEHDE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 E#HZ—F

8.

and liabilities (Continued)

—NE+ZA=+—HLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Reportable segment revenue
from contracts with external
customers within scope of
HKFRS 15

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation of plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
prepayment to a supplier

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of inventories

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current assets
Reportable segment liabilities

BEWBREER

8.

| 551555

BENZKEINATP

BRI 2

pEE P

= R EITE

EREEENE

A —HKEEE

B RIARER
B & 1B R

LB E BRI
H A 8 UK AR SRR AR

1B &5 1R

IEFEERZRERE

SLERES B R R FERR 2

BB B 18

SEREEERRZ

1B &5 1R
BEZRERE
T & O B [

W B d s

THER KR WS (&)

(a) TEFLHRAIZHF Wz 1B

# BERBREZHE ()

BEZ_ZT-NF+ZA=+t—-HL

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
BE
BEEK PRUE £ st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
108,455 - 108,455
(19,175) (1,759) (20,934)
1,177 - 1,177
368 - 368
(118) - (118)
4,256 = 4,256
95 - 95
4,491 - 4,491
205 - 205
6,005 - 6,005
(370) - (370)
60,141 3,678 63,819
61 - 61
(37,639) (13,499) (51,138)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. S EB&E R B U3 (&)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEHETHBRIZH 5z 1B
w BERABEZHE (&)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

2019
HK$’000
THER
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue and A28 B lan ke W
consolidated revenue 108,455
Loss before income tax MRATESHATEE
Reportable segment loss A 2w IEE (20,934)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRATEFABRIMBEEE
fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (108)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERATFEFABEZ
fair value through profit or loss MG EECERE (69)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B I 5% s T 7R
plant and equipment TEEE (675)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEAEEERRZ
right-of-use assets A EE (626)
Loss on write-off of plant and equipment B K i s 2 EiE (1)
Interest income B U A 87
Gain on deregistration of an associate FHE—RHBE AR M 24
Miscellaneous income HIEUMA 407
Motor vehicle expenses RHE (161)
Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations) 8 L7 (B IFEEFHH) (6,184)
Rental expenses HeMX (365)
Corporate expenses PESZT (3,531)
Finance costs A& B AR (605)

Consolidated loss before income tax

BRI ST ATAR A B 18

(32,741)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others (Note a)

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Tax payables

— Amount due to a related party, Mr. Lau
— Others (Note b)

Consolidated total liabilities

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W -8
# BERBEZHE (&)

2019
HK$’000
FHET
BE
AIR2MOIAEE 63,819
KO EBE
— R AFEFABZ 2UBEE
5,612
—emes 874
-RekREEEY 232
—H b (fsxa) 400
REEERE 70,937
=R
AZ2®moHasE 51,138
KOBETCEEE
—JESBLIE 4,574
—[EfTREE AT B4 28 27,568
—H b (H7Eb) 6,282
REBEET 89,562

Note a:  The unallocated corporate assets mainly included Mizta: ROBECEEEZZREAR
deposits for the headquarter in Hong Kong. BB RS-
Note b:  The unallocated corporate liabilities mainly included fizEb: ROBECEBBEEXERIEESR

lease liabilities for the headquarter in Hong Kong,
accrued salaries, professional fee and audit fee.

wEsHEAE EiFE B
EXERREREE-



Annug 1| R(p(nl 2019
—NFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#ZE—F

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Reportable segment revenue
from contracts with external
customers within scope of
HKFRS 15

Reportable segment profit/(loss)

Depreciation of plant and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
prepayment to a supplier

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of inventories

Recovery of bad debts

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current assets
Reportable segment liabilities

BREYHRELRE155
BEANZKEIAERP
BHMA 2R D 8Bk

AI2®moAEF, (EBE)

W= NI e
A RHEEEZ
BN RIRER
BB R R
FLEME 5 IR R
Ho A R SRR AR
B & 1B
IF B R RERER

Yo =332 Bk
T & OB [

2R HEE
3F/}\L@J§§E/d\
A2/ HABEE

8.

THER KR WS (&)

—“NE+ZA=+—HILFE

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W -8
# BERBEZHE (&)

HE_Z—-—N\F+_A=+—81
FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
% &
BREH  REEH @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
216,104 - 216,104
11,990 (3,238) 8,752
199 - 199
(363) - (363)
2 - 2
- 1,221 1,221
(14,083) - (14,083)
(155) - (155)
72,083 3,643 75,726
5,808 - 5,808
(36,069) (12,701) (48,770)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Profit before income tax

Reportable segment profit

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other receivables

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Write back of interest payables

Motor vehicle expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Rental expenses

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Consolidated profit before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others

Consolidated total assets

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. S XWER B U (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W -8

Bk P 15 %5 A0 38 A

Al 2% 7 #8 s A

BRAVESABSZMBEEZ
RFEER

L H R MR R AR 2
B & 1R

A EHA

FETRUMA

F& A< 1) B =]

MBS

BTRA (BREEEFHH)

He X

EEXH

DIEWE R R 2 EE

B P15 75 AT AR A i A

BE

A2WDMEE

ANBEEEEE
—REERRZRE
—HAVEFABSZYHEE
—Emes
—REeRkREEFEY
—Hfh

RAREEMRE

o

# BERBEZHE (&)

2018
HK$'000
TAET

216,104

75,726

498

5,886
877
1,704
554

85,245
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

(b)

(c)

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Tax payables

— Amount due to a related party, Mr. Lau

— Others

Consolidated total liabilities

Geographical information

af

AEHDHMEE
ADELERE
— IR
—BNEEA

—Hfh

o

BEAE

K

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group’s operations and non-current assets are
situated in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”") in
which all of its revenue was derived.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, where each of them
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue,

are set out below:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E*
Customer F*

*

EEA
=FB
®2FC
BFD

BFE
BFF

The corresponding revenue in the year for this customer

did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group.

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

THER KR WS (&)

(a) HEHDEHRAIZEHS W -8
# BERBEZHE (&)

2018
HK$'000
TET

48,770

4,574
18,359
6,106

TR LA Z KA

77,809

(b) HEHER

REBE_ZE—NEFrR_ZFT-—NF+=
A=+ BLFE AEEZEBR
IRBEEHURPEARENEH
([E]) meEEBRFHHREPE -

(c) EBTEEFZEH

XEX2EPHNUE (RESBMHEA
SEWE 210%3 A L) EHFIT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
20,537 N/A T iE
19,083 N/A “I~iE B
15,494 N/A “I~iE B
11,129 N/A T8
N/A 7 iE F 80,298
N/A T3 A 35,667

* L RAFEREZEP ZARKRGEER
EEBRETBIL THEE10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. S 3ER B Uk (&)

(d) Revenue (d) Wz
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by RTRA WHLRETEMETS =
primary geographical market, major products and EEBERS S E LW ERRE D
service lines and timing of revenue recognition. b7isk
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with EEEHNWNFEDIF
customers

Trading of mobile phone

EEBHES
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Primary geographical market FEhEHH
PRC H 108,455 216,104
Major product FTEEm
Mobile phone BEEFE 108,455 216,104

Timing of revenue recognition X % 78 52 i S
At a point in time P FE — BRF R B 108,455 216,104
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hit=mREHE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Exchange loss 0 5 B 18 1 )
Fair value loss on financial assets at ~ E A F{EzF ABzHZ

fair value through profit or loss BREEs AT EESE (108) (519)
Impairment loss recognised REEBRRZREEE

in respect of inventories (95) (1,221)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FLEE M & HER 2

of plant and equipment BIERE (5,166) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect FhiE REEERRZ

of right-of-use assets BB EE (831) -
Impairment loss on goodwill B REEE (6,005) -
Reversal of impairment loss FRA—KEEE 2

recognised in respect of T8 R I8 1R

prepayment to a supplier REBEEE 118 363
Impairment loss recognised in EREZEFR KL

respect of trade and other H b JE PR FRERR

receivables VEREY TR (4,256) (23)
Write back of interest payables FEAT R B M E (BFE28)

(Note 28) - 11,922
Write back of trade payables FEH B 5 BR M 23 -
Loss on disposal of financial assets ~ H&ZAFEFAEBRZZ

at fair value through profit or loss BREEEE (69) -
Loss on write-off of plant and W= &R s 2 B8

equipment (1) -
Gain on deregistration of an associate 7t 5 — B & A A7) 2 WS 24 -
Recovery of bad debts (Note 28) W B3 B (P 5E28) - 14,083
Others HAt - (1,619

(16,367) 22984

161



162

China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMHHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities
Imputed interest on loan from
a related party

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Loss)/profit before income tax is
arriving at

after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (Note 13)
— salaries and allowances for
other staff
— retirement benefit scheme

contribution (excluding directors)

and after crediting:

Interest income

Recovery of write down of inventories

10. @& K&
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
HEBEBEZAE 29 -
JEN—2BEALTZER
ZIHEFE 576 -
605 -
1. BRFTBH A (BB)
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
BrFTSREAT (B518) 55
BBk :
% 2B B & 1,016 1,134
BERREAI 2 HFEXR
107,444 213,966
BB K& ETE 1,215 211
FREEENE 533 -
8 TR
—EFWe (MFE13) 3,594 3,631
—Hi 8 T#& K28
5,072 3,742
—RRRE F FT 8 3k
(TERESE) 295 267
8,961 7,640
FBEEA:
A B U A 87 45
15 & MUk 5 Bl 370 155
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — PRC Enterprises Income BN E#: 38 — fp B 1> 2 Fr 15 7%

(TREMEH])
—FEREA

Tax (“EIT”)
— tax for the year

The Group’s major operations are being carried out through
its subsidiaries established in the PRC and subject to the
EIT rate of 25% (2018: 25%), unless preferential rates are
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the (loss)/profit before income tax per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax (credit)/expense at the
domestic income tax rate of 25%
(2018: 25%) (Note)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR HIF X 7 RIS £
BERBRBA 2B
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEE N B BB
EREERANBERNERE

Tax effect of non-taxable income

and utilisation of tax losses and

deductible temporary differences
Effect of tax concession granted

to a subsidiary g
Effect of different tax rates of

group entities operating in

other jurisdictions

MG EE

CIEEEAEE3

Income tax expense

BRETSHAT (B18), 8

A 1S BB £ 25%
—T-N\F:25%):tE 2

FTis®t (%) /FAx (Ki) (8,185) 2,613

DEBE RN EE TG

By —HENBRARNKERLZ

REAMANAEREEL
SEERTRAKRERZS

12. i88BEX

REEMBARAZAEHAZSEE:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TExT
35 148

AREBEFEBEN T B 2K ERQAE
TTEEEK WARL25% (—ZF— \F:
25% ) 2 RIS HHE M - HEBER X
RN LW E QB P Em ™ AIERIN

AERZFABHRAXEFEEEBARZ
BRETISBiRT (B518) s M BRI T :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
(82,741) 10,453

B 488
ga

- 107
3,378 1,053
(198) (5,415)
3,720 2,482
(141) (155)
1,461 (537)
35 148
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$195,169,000
(2018: HK$182,731,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. The tax losses are subject to the final
assessment by the tax authorities in the respective
jurisdictions where the tax losses arising from. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated
unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$48,798,000 (2018: HK$43,043,000) that
may be carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$4,930,000 (2018: HK$8,854,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12. REHAX (&)

R EEAR - ANEE G F A AEEIRK
) 2 M AR R IR B 1R 40 /5195,169,000
Bt (ZZ— )\ 182,731,000 7T ) °
MIBEIBASEEREBBNERR R
[ B 575 M B VE AR 1R AT Y o R AN DA TR
R R PROR - A B B AT IS AT 2 1A R B
AzRMEBBREREEHIBEE AKX
TR TR IE & 18 2 B 18 40 /548,798,000 7T
— = — )\ 4 :43,043,000/8 L) ' Al B E
EEFEREERF -FITHRERNIE
JE5 18 Rl A] fE PR B A5 85 o

RBERR AEENBANRERERE
#94,930,0007 7T ( —=ZF —/\F : 8,854,000
PETT) c B KATREE) A AT N B B 2 58
FADAHE 85 B AR B0 )+ a0 3 52 S AT A
RENEZERRECHBEEE-

fisE: AMABHMEIERNEERNTE D EBE
Rz EEMEHRBE-
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven FRENSENMNTFEM(ZE—)\F: )\
(2018: eight) directors during the year were as follows: M)BEEEaZME0T:
Chang
Lau Law Wing
Siu Ying Luo Chun Seng, Lam Bao Kang Lo
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi Kwan Victor WangYu  Man Kit Rong WaiShun  Gao Fei Total
40K
(T8%%]) BEz BRY BAB I8 WK HEE B4 i ag
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) ~ (Note 4)  (Note 5)
(BzE1) (HizE2) (WzE3)  (Ma4)  (H&s)

HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL  TEr  TEr TEx TExr  TEx  TEr  TEr  TEx  TEn

2019 ZEZ-RF

Fees ik - - 100 - - 100 100 100 - 400

Salaries and allowances HeREs 2,707 - - - 445 - - - 4 3,156

Retirement benefit scheme RN B

contribution 3 = = = 35 = - - - 38

Total emoluments M@ 2,710 - 100 - 480 100 100 100 4 3,594

2018 —E-)\F

Fees ik - - 100 1Y) - 100 58 58 - 358

Salaries and allowances HeREh 2,769 - - - 464 - - - - 3,233

Retirement benefit scheme RIVEFIE B

contribution 3 - - - 37 - - - - 40

Total emoluments Heg 2,772 - 100 4 501 100 58 58 - 3,631

Notes: (TEX

1. Mr. Luo Xi Zhi resigned as the executive director of the 1. BEZAARZZT—N\FHEA+EHBEE
Company on 17 April 2018. ARRHITESE

2. Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor retired as the independent non- 2. EUOKBEER-ZT-NFAA-—BRAR
executive director of the Company on 1 June 2018. NEVEMIERITES -

3.  Mr. Bao Kang Rong was appointed as the non-executive 3. HMEEZEEN_ZFT-N\FAANBEZE
director of the Company on 4 June 2018. RARNAEHRITES -

4. Dr. Lo Wai Shun was appointed as the independent non- 4. BHREETR-_ZT-NFAANBEZET
executive director of the Company on 4 June 2018. BARRNRBYLIERITES -

5.  Mr. Gao Fei was appointed as the executive director of the 5. BREAENR-_ZE—NALF+=-_A=++tH
Company on 27 December 2019, the acquisition date of (Bt REMWIE R Mk AZARE

Beijing Feiying, of which he serves as a director. BIRZEAERRRNITES-
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2018: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in Note 13 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2018: three) individuals
were as follows:

Salaries and allowances e MOEBRL
Retirement benefit RIRTEFIET B3R

scheme contribution

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T LA A

None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

14. EEME

AEBRAUGZSHFALTHR HEPmA (=
T—N\F W) ABARFES HN&H
REXHFI1I3 BT =L (T \F: =

f)ATZBET:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
1,714 1,429
54 50
1,768 1,479

ZEREZMENFTIIHRE:

2019 2018
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®E EE#E
3 3

RAFEFBEFERN AUZSHAL
BB E R EE AN E -

HE_ZTZ-—NLFE_FT—-—NF+A4
=T -RLEE AERBERLIUES
AT (BEES)INEAME  ERB
BHEZEMASIEMARNERR 2B <k E
B -
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DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2018: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of loss/earnings per share for the year
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$26,093,000 (2018: profit of
HK$7,799,000) and the weighted average number
of 917,779,442 (2018: 917,779,442) shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of
any potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share because the Group has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31
December 2018.

15. KR

RAFELBEFEA B8R HIR
BB B ¥ B R DA 2R O 48 UK A 7] BB

(=

F-N\F )

16. Bk (B18) BF

(a)

(b)

GREX (FE)  BF

FRABREE " BANDIREARQ
A ¥EE A FE L F A B 1826,093,000
BT (ZF—N\F:mH7,799,000
BIL)RFRBBETRGD 2 NEF
B 8017,779,442% (=T — )\ F:
917,779,4420% ) 51 & -

ERBE (FE) BF

WHE-F-NF+-A=+-BL
FEAREMEEEARARES
WE - BRE 25 R -

HRAEERBE_Z—\F+=A
St HUESFEIEHSERE LR
B M EREERN R RERNR T
ElE
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Write-off

At 31 December 2018
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Additions from business combination

Write-off

At 31 December 2019

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year
Eliminated on write-off

At 31 December 2018
Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year
Impairment loss

Eliminated on write-off

At 31 December 2019

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

RZE-\F+ZA=+—H
R AE

7l

REEBAHZAM

e

RZZ-AF+-A=+-H

R ERAE

RZE-N\F—H—H
EHAEE
FTERE
MEE R

WZE-NF+ZA=1+—H
EHRE
FEHAE
REEE
W R

RZZ-AF+-A=+-H

RmfE
RZZ-AF+-A=+-H

RZZE-N\Ft-A=t—-H

17. WERZRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor ~ Construction
improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
B
HEXE  RKERRE AE HEIRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TER TEL TER
4,631 3,235 2,117 6,523 16,506
(155) (101) (25) (326) (607)
5,807 13 - - 5,820
- (6) - - (6)
10,283 3,141 2,092 6,197 21,713
(171) (33) (8) (109) (321)
535 158 - - 693
- 61 - - 61
(836) (858) - - (1,694)
9,811 2,469 2,084 6,088 20,452
4,631 3,214 2,096 6,523 16,464
(213) (102) (24) (326) (665)
198 13 - - 211
- (6) - - (6)
4,616 3,119 2,072 6,197 16,004
(172) (33) (8) (109) (322)
1,192 23 - - 1,215
5,011 155 - - 5,166
(836) (857) - - (1,693)
9,811 2,407 2,064 6,088 20,370
- 62 20 - 82
5,667 22 20 - 5,709
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year, the leasehold improvements of the
manufacturing plant in EEBEI K HmEEZER QA of
HK$4,491,000, allocated to the cash generating unit of
Chongging Manufacturing (“CQM CGU”) under mobile
phone business segment, has been fully impaired and
recognised as other gains and losses due to the suspension
of production plan. The suspension was resulted from
the change of development plan imposed by the local
government.

In the impairment testing, the recoverable amount of CQM
CGU is determined using the value-in-use calculation based
on cash flow projections from financial budgets approved
by management. The management does not anticipate
that there will be any resumption of development plan in
foreseeable future, and therefore, assume no revenue would
be generated in the cash flow projections. As a result, the
recoverable amount of CQM CGU was determined as nil.

By comparing the recoverable amount and the carrying
amount of this CGU, a full impairment of the leasehold
improvements of HK$4,491,000 was recognised to the
profit or loss.

17. WMERSZRE (&)

FAN EEBEKBHEEERATNESE
TR EE4,491,0008 Lo B EREF
MWEBHHBETEERENRSEEEN
(EEgERSELESEMN])  ARKIEE
EaRrElim e BEURE TERAH M E
REBHE - RIE TR BN E AR
FrEI# -

RBEARAE EERERSEEEMN
AJREEDEREEEH ENMERE
PR RERAERERABEENEEE-
EIEERANAIARARK TG REERET
2Bt BERBeREEANTSELEW
YWas e At BERERSELEEMHAK

CeMEERT-

BRLERZRTELEVNARESER
RHE RESTEREERETENE
4,491,000/8 7T °
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COST
At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

18. MINING RIGHT 18. IR IE#E

B AR
R-ZE—-N\F—HA—H
PE 5 S

R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
& 5§ %

R EERRE

R-ZE—-N\F—A—H
PE i G

R-E-N\F+-_A=+—H
EE 3 8

R-ZFE-NAF+-_A=+—H

IREE
R-ZE-AF+-_A=+—H

R-_ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H

HK$’'000
TAET

441,600
(22,080)

419,520
(7,360)

412,160

441,600
(22,080)

419,520
(7,360)

412,160
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18. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC.

Mining exploitation/operating permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit
on 25 September 2012, Sifa Mining renewed the mining
operating permit for 2 years from the Ministry of Land
and Resources of the PRC (2 A R EMEIE L &R E0)
(“MLR”), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out
exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities.
The latest 2-year mining operating permit was expired
on 25 September 2016. Since then, the Group had been
preparing for the application of renewal for the mining
operating permit.

On 21 December 2017, the Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of application
of renewal for the expired mining operating permit. The
DLR instructed the owners of the expired mining operating
permits as identified in the DLR Announcement had to
furnish the application procedures for the renewal before
28 February 2018. If the owners fail to do so, they were
required to de-register the mining operating permits before
31 March 2018 by themselves or the DLR will de-register
their permits instead. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group’s situation on whether the Group
was allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.

18. SRIEHE (&)

IR B REN T AL B AT
17 RIBE B 0 R -

R TR

IFHRBEFAIBER _E—_F1A
“tHHRERE BEBEEETEAR
HMBEE T ERE (THEERBELR
HIMF R A - Bt - SRR ER
HEETRIREES M IEFARIEE - ZHMF
HRBEAIZECNR _T—R"FAA-TH
Bigim- it AEBEEEFHRFEERE
FPAIRE ©

RZZE—+tF+ A -+—HB FEAR
HAEHILE B+ ERE ([B+ERE])

ERREEACERRETIZE IR é%
REE A ([BLEEREAM]) o E
ﬁﬁ%hﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ“%%%ZE@
MBI E LB ABR T - NF =
H4+A5HhﬁEF2$:ﬁrwﬁ%
BARETHEREF AEBREEAR-Z
—N\F=ZA=+— AR AT ERENY
B RAETERERTHETAE
EI%:%—AE_HAEﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Bt+ERBRI —HEMY UARAEEE
T#ELEEF$EZ x & BAR st B &
RRXRITORBAAIERBEEAEE 2B
/R"
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18. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

Up to the date of the 2017 Annual Report, the Group had
not received the reply from the DLR and was not able to
furnish the application before the deadline. The directors
were of the opinion that there was a material uncertainty
on whether the Group would be successful in the future
application for the mining operating permit because of
the DLR Announcement. The directors had factored this
into their assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment,
and the carrying amount of the related deferred tax liability
(the “mining activities related assets and liability”) as at 31
December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
could not renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and
equipment of HK$8,965,000 and derecognised the related
deferred tax liability of HK$41,116,000 in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group,
through its lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone
calls and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018
for the clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR
did not make reply to the Group’s enquiries. The directors
were advised by the lawyer that, in accordance with the
rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group has lost its
mining right and no longer entitled to any benefit to be
derived from the mining right.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18. SRIEHE (&)

FRIEF A& (&)

BEEZZ—tFFWMAH NEBEWRK
I+ ERBEZ2EE BAERTEHRE
AIREEPB -EERA AEERAEBESK
NHRBERETIZEBR T ERBEAMMT
FERTHEE EFRNTHEAEEN
E—+tFF+_A=Z+—HZRBEKIENH
MEREETRESEREERCHIES
EEREE ([REXBEFEEERAE]) K
BRI ERZ UHREAEERGEEE
FFAlRE - A B ERIEAE174,589,0007% 7T & A
B I 7% 158,965,000/ ST He 2 BERE
BE YREBE—_ZEZ—+E+-_A=+—
HIEFEREBEEREUERERIRLEHIE
£ 541,116,000/ 7T °

BHE-_Z-\F+=ZA=1+—BLFE"
AEECERERMERANERRENE
RR-ZF-N\F_AELH 2R 2T AZE
BELTERE UWEBAEEZBEN A
e EtEREYENBAEE SR -&
FEEMERN REPERERERG K
SHCREERBRELTBEERBRE
HZ AR e
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MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

The directors had carefully reassessed and reviewed the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of the
mining business (the “CGU”) to which the mining right is
allocated. As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the directors
determined the recoverable amount of the CGU should be
nil as the directors are of the opinion that the DLR is unlikely
to grant the mining operating permit to the Company nor
to other market participants, if any. The directors have also
considered the fair value of the plant and equipment related
to the mining business is minimal as most of them were the
infrastructure that attached to the mining site which were
not removable and not saleable.

18. SRIEHE (&)

FRIEF A& (&)

EXCRESHTELEHNED LRERE
ZRBEEBRcELABN([(ReELE
D Z2AIRESE- R E-—N\FR_-F
—NEFE+A=1+—"RH EXEBETHLE
EEUZAREOSRREAT RASES
RABELERETARIGERAN QA S HAM
mig2EE (M) RHREFIZE -EF
MABRRBEEL ZAEBRE KRB Z QT
BEERE RESKMBOMELRERES
Z W BERERE ETARRA AL E -

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 10. FREEE
HK$'000
FABT
At 1 January 2019 (Note 2(a)) RZE—hF—A—H (fi20)) 93
Additions il 1,303
Additions from business combination REEBE 2RI 1,134
Depreciation e (533)
Impairment loss B B 1B (831)
Exchange adjustments & 5 38 B 10

At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—hF+-_A=+—H 1,176

173



174

China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR
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19.

20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. E}Eﬁ EEE (,%g)
The assets underlying the net book value of right-of-use HERAEEEREMEERENEEA:
assets are:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF
+=-A=+—8H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Properties, carried at depreciated cost &% #7 £ ik 7K 51| B 69 ) % 1,176 93
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEERNRZRE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Cost of investments in unlisted RIEETEE R F 2 HEKA
associates - 4,912
Share of post-acquisition reserves FEAG UK B 14 R 1 - (4,352)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 8 B = (62)

498
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates are as follows:

Form of Place of
business incorporation/
Name of associate structure operation
EMARL/
BERNRER EBERER EEH

IRREGENEERAA Incorporated PRC

(“Beijing Feiying”)

ERREGHERRERAA ERliiAv el
([tRRE])

Ever Trillion Investments Incorporated British Virgin
Limited (“Ever Trillion”) Islands

Ever Trilion Investments A Ak Az RBRUHE

Limited ([ Ever Trillion |)

Notes:

(@) Beijing Feiying has become a subsidiary of the Group on 27
December 2019. The Group continued to share the results
of Beijing Felying under the equity method during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 27 December 2019.

Details of the deemed step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary is disclosed in Note 33(a).

(b)  Ever Trillion was deregistered in January 2019.

20. REFE AR ZRE (&)
REBBEARFBEOT:
Proportion of

nominal value of
issued capital

held by the Group Principal activities
EEERAEERT
RAEENEDL TEEH

2019 2018

- 33.5%  Trading in second-hand mobile

(Note a) phones and provision of
marketing services

(Ktata) BEE_FRYEARRETSH
B R

- 42.86%  Investment holding
(Note b)
(Biztb) REEKR

B &L -

(8 EFERRER-T—NAF+ZAZ+EHK
REAEBEHNHBEAGT R _T—NF—H
—HEZZT-NF+ZA=Z+tBHH"
REBEERZEREZZBILARENZE

=3
&

BRI ENEMEB AR NE— P
Z BB FE33(a) 1 55 ©

(b) Ever Trillion®A =& — NG — AHssEM-
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Beijing Feiying

Since 2016, the Group discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of an associate, Beijing Feiying, as
summarised below:

Unrecognised share of (loss)/profit of RIERD (LS Q& z

HE/FR (B8, a8

associate for the period/year

Accumulated unrecognised share of
loss of associate &5 18

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Non-current assets (note a) ERBEE (HeFa)
Unlisted equity investments FELEmMRERE
Unlisted fund investment FLEMESERE
Current assets (note b) REEE (Hzb)
Listed equity investments in the PRC ~ FR B i i 1% &

20. AEBFE NR2RE (&)

It 7R

BT —ARFUR AEECRILERE
DIEHE AR RRE 2 B8 - BT

RE AR EBHERRZ

01.01.2019 -
27.12.2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(8,031) 3,156
(11,697) (3,666)

. BAFEFARBZUBEE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
222 1,619
4,469 3,731
4,691 5,350
921 536
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

note a: These investments were reclassified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss on 1 January 2018 under
HKFRS 9. The directors of the Group intend to hold these
investments for long term strategic purpose.

Unlisted investments are investments in couple of private
entities incorporated in different jurisdictions that engaged
in different businesses.

note b: The listed equity investments are classified within level 1 of

21. RAFEFABRZZUEKEE

(%)

Miita: WZZ—-N\F—-H—-H ZERER
BEEBMBRELERNFORFEEN D
BREATEFABRZHBEE-
AEBEEHARIRBHEBNIFE
TEHRE -
FELEMRERNE TR AR RERER
HEMAZRREETEEB 2L TR
A

fisth : EMBRERENER/RFEBHRNSE

the fair value hierarchy.

CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

COST
At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which

— &

22. EffE %

HK$'000
FAET
R
RZZE—N\F—H—H 1,384
PE 5 FE R (11)
R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 1,373
bE 5, o (3)
R-E—hhE+-_A=+—H 1,370
BE
R—ZE—NF—H—H"
—E-NFE+-_A=+—8BK
—E-NEF+-A=1+—H 496
RMEE
R-ZE—hhE+-_A=+—H 874
R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H 877

represents the second-hand market price less cost of

disposal.

AT E B RACARE 2 BRI E &R
fFRo-AEMEREERER  JKOSRE
BAFERIEERAET T =-FM5
(BB B -

177



178

China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMHHRRME
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23. INVENTORIES

Mobile phone business
— finished goods

BHERED
— LR &

Included in the cost of sales recognised as expense for the

year ended 31 December 2019 were recovery of write down
of inventories of HK$370,000 (2018: HK$155,000) which
was caused by the increase in the net realisable value.

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: accumulated allowance

Value-added-tax receivables
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables and deposits
Less: accumulated allowance

Trade and other receivables

U E 7 B 3K
B RET R

& W IR BT

B ER 2 SR
H it YRR R
B RET A

23. 7€

2019
HK$’000
TER

26

2018
HK$'000
TAET

95

BE-_T-NFE+_-_A=+—RHItEEZ
ERRBAX ZHEXN A BIERNA R
SFE I 0T E A 2 17 & MU B [E1370,000
B (ZZF— /\F :155,000%7C) °

24. W E 5 IR AR H fth FE AR K

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T FAT
8,379 508
(3,250) (52)
5,129 456
356 259
27,708 40,122
14,509 32,262
(31,199) (30,917)
42,182

FEULE 2 BR 3k % E Ath FE UG BR 3R 16,503
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

(a) The Group generally requests for full prepayment from

its trade customers but it also allows credit period
of 30 to 90 days for certain trade customers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance) presented based on the invoice date at
the end of reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0Z30H
31 to 90 days 31290H
91 to 365 days 91£365H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines its credit limits. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
no default payment history.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end
of reporting period but for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss because management are
of the opinion that the fundamental credit quality of the
customers has not deteriorated.

Less than 90 days past due # #3790 H
Over 90 days but less than i1 B8 3890 H
365 days past due B 5365H

24. BB 5 RN H th B AR X
(#&)

(a AEBE-RERBEZFEFENEZH
FE ENGTETESEF=TZE
NTBEZEEH -RREHRZEK
BHEX (CHRER) HRERBH=2
S ZBRER DA

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
5,023 -
25 -

81 456
5,129 456

EMEAHELA ARE G EE
EEFPZEEEE ARAEEER
B EHRIRTEPZRE - KED
BERBEITR AR B 2 EUE 5 B K
BRI

AEEY ERE ZERT B EFER
me AT RARBEHRCAHMERE
BEERREFPZEAEREEARIARE
1t T 28 B 62 (8] 3 48 {4 3 OR1 (5 5 1R 7
BB SERZREERED T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
25 -

81 456

106 456
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

(b) Included in the other receivables as at 31 December
2019 were advances of HK$3,366,000 (2018:
HK$841,000) to Mr. Dai’'s mother (“Mrs. Dai”). Mr. Dai
is a non-controlling shareholder of one of the Group’s

subsidiaries. The advances are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

(c) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in

respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year

Exchange adjustments

Impairment losses recognised
during the year

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised

Written off of allowance as
uncollectible

Balance at end of year

FVIERR
PE 5 R
FRER ZRIEEE
BRZEERBERD

7% 78 fE I 85 /5 T AT W [ml

FRIER

24 EWE ZRA R H Mt FEBR X
(#)

(b)

(c)

R_E—hWEF+_A=+—HZHM
EWERBRERABEETH ([EX
AJ)#3£3,366,0008 L (ZF — N\
£ : 841,000/ 7T ) ° B S E TR K B
ME AR 2 IEEHIMERER ZEEXK
RERF THEREREREER-

BEEKE SRR EMERIERSR
RBE=ZZE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

30,969 46,374

(557) 170

4,256 23

(118) (14,446)

(101) (1,152)

34,449 30,969
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

25.

26.

(c) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policies stated in
Note 4.

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision
for individually impaired trade and other receivables
of HK$34,449,000 (2018: HK$30,969,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$50,952,000
(2018: HK$73,151,000).

The individually impaired trade and other receivables
relate to debtors that were in financial difficulties
or were in default in both interest and/or principal
payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2019 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB15,978,000 (2018:
RMB21,806,000) in form of cash on hand and at banks.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

24 EWE ZRA R H Mt FEBR X

25.

26.

(#&)

(c) BHENREGKRFREMEREAR
RREBZE2E (&)

RE BRI 4P 2 & 5T R E
R E B Z BEEE

e E SR 5k I H A R
RRERBRLEREANKREZ
EWE SRR R EMERIERR &
#34,449,0008 L (=& — )\ F:
30,969,000 7t) - BRI R E A
450,952,000 L (=& — \F:
73,151,000/ 7T) °

EERIRE 2 FEUE 5 Bk & EL A &
YRR K08 B B A Bt 765 TR 56 383 AR R R,
/IR NRZEBA FHEER
Yo al e U B sz — BB D ©

FEUR FE A5 B B 2 ) FE 422 4 M AR 3R
ZRIE

BHRASEER THERAREREE-

RERREEEY

AEEZRERBACEEMEZULAEE
EBREREZNEEE ARB BT E-
RZE—NAF+-_A=+—H BE &R
CEEVMBEAARBFTFEZFERR
TR &4 AR#15978,000T (ZZE—N
F: AR¥21,806,0007T) - ARKETREF
RABAREME-

RITE LI BRIT RN RRIFAE
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. BN E SRR K E M BN RX

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables N EHRZENESBETIRBREHEHR
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting S| ZBREE DT T
period:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Trade payables: JERE SRR
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 1,269 -
Over 90 days B 3E90H 349 42
1,618 42
Value-added-tax payables JE I8 E R 18 18
Prepayments from customers P ENMNFIE 1,033 143
Other payables and accruals Hia e R R ERT B R 28,019 38,836
30,688 39,039
28. BANK BORROWING 28. RITHE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Secured bank borrowing BHRMETEE
— repayable within one year — AR —FRNEE 4,480 -
The bank borrowing bears interest at 0.1% plus the prime RITEENZROA%RNMFTRHARETRER
rate of the People’s Bank of China and are repayable by FERAB2  WER—FRNDMEAERE -

two instalments within one year.

The bank borrowing is secured by i) the personal guarantee RITEENSERELERERBIRERNE
given by Mr. Gao Fei and his spouse and i) a property AFER - DA Kb SRR E B — 22 BT A% SRR
located in the PRC given by a former shareholder of Beijing R —E Y EIEEA -

Feiying.

The first instalment of HK$2,240,000 was overdue in June BE2,240,0008 TR T _TFH@
2020. The Group is still under negotiation with the bank on H - AEENMATHRBITEEESRHE KN

renewing the borrowing up to date of this annual report. FHRAEAEAE R
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28. BANK BORROWING (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two
subsidiaries of the Group and a lender of the borrowings
amounted to HK$14,878,000 entered into a waiver of
debt assignments. The lender is also the debtor of one of
the above subsidiaries of the Group with the outstanding
trade receivables of HK$14,083,000 being fully impaired in
previous years. Under the waiver of debt assignments, all
the parties agreed that the outstanding trade receivables
would be fully set off with other borrowings. The interest
payables of HK$11,922,000 were also waived accordingly.
Therefore, a recovery of bad debts of HK$14,083,000 and
write back of interest payables of HK$11,922,000 were

28. RITEE (&)

BHE-ZEZ—-N\E+_A=+—RHIEE-
NEE W HENEB QT EEE14,878,000
B2 —RERUBEBEEENRR -Z
BZEFNABALER-—BAEERER
RzEBAN BRAAREEERKEZER
14,083,000 TERBEFETERMME -
BREEBERRE AN FRE &
REEEWE SRR BEIE B EME
B o &+ F 811,922,000 7T I8 © 8 FE &
N o AL U B3 8R 14,083,000 T M &
~F B E 11,922,000 L EREE - F
—N\F+_A=Z+—BIEFEZEBERNRE

recognised in profit or loss in the year ended 31 December Ao
2018.
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EBER¥E R
2019 2018 2019 2018
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tk T TET TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRAEI0E T2 L@
Authorised EEREK 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BRTRBERTBRA 917,779 917,779 91,778 91,778
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019
without restatement of comparative figures. As explained in
Note 2(a), the Group applied the transitional requirements
as at 1 January 2019. The accounting policies applied
subsequent to the date of initial application of 1 January
2019 are disclosed in Note 4.

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases its office premises and quarters for
certain of its staff and directors. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over the
relevant lease terms.

(a) HKFRS 16

Lease liabilities are due as follows:

TR~
B~ RTERME

Not later than one year
Later than one year and
not later than two years

30. HE&EE

AEBE-_T-NF-HA-BER®KE
BB HRELERE165E ML BB LR
BT MM 2@ ARER —F
—NF-A-BREABEMRE - R_-F
—NE-—A-—BWFERBHRZKER
B & ET R O FE AR EE ©

HEZBME (LARBANEG)

AEEREETIREEHERREDER
BE -BMORMEZFHFERER kES
RBEBEORRANEE -

(a) EEHUBHEEREICY

Minimum lease

HEABIHNOT :

Lease liabilities

payments Interest (present value)
HERE

BEEEMK FE (RE)
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019
“E-NE “E2-n% ZB-NF
t=A=t+-8  +zZA=t-8  +=A=t-*
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TR
1,367 60 1,307

710 3 707

2,077 63 2,014
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. AEARK (&)

(a) HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(a) BEBHBHEERFE16% (&)

Minimum lease Lease liabilities
payments Interest (present valug)
RERERH ME MEaE (RE)
1 January 1 January 1 January
2019 2019 2019
—E-NE —E-NF —E-NF
—HA—H —A—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR TRT
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(PBaT) (P aT) (BsE)
Not later than one year TER—F 63 3 60
Later than one year and BR—FRTERMF
not later than two years 33 - 33
96 3 93
Note: The Company initially applied HKFRS 16 using T : AARIHKBEEBTEXIVLERSES
the cumulative effect approach to recognise lease EI SRS ERF 1658 ERE L
liabilities relating to leases which were previously BREE A ERE17THDES
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Details REHENTHESENTHEaE-
of the transition are set out in Note 2(a). BEFBHNHE2E) -
The present value of lease liabilities are analysed as: HEBBENRESTHT
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-AE —ET-NF
+=B=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TAET
Current liabilities mBafsk 1,307 60
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 707 33

Lease liabilities

HEAE 2,014 93
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

(@

(b)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

Short term lease expense

Extension option is included in a staff quarter and is

exercisable only by the Group but not the lessor.

HKAS 17

Minimum lease payments paid
under operating leases

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total
outstanding minimum commitments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fell due as follows:

30. HEEE (&)

(a) BEBHBHEERFE16% (&)

2019
HK$’000
TERT

EEHHERX 593

EHEERESAE LIRS WIEATA
AEEELIFFEBAITE-

(b) EEEZEREI7H

2018
HK$'000
T
RELEMENMREHEENK
1,459

RZZE-NF+_RA=+—HB &&
BRE A HHELHEER T IHIR
AR SRR R EEAERRBRNT

2018

HK$’000

FET

Within one year —F A 684
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERAF (BEEEMT) 39

723
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 May
2014 which was effective at the same day and will expire
on 28 May 2024. The primary purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives to directors, eligible employees and
other qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, there were no outstanding
shares in respect of which options had been granted.

B1.URDAERNRZRS

ARBR-_Z—OFRA -+ /\BERA—
TRRERRERT 8 TR R B AR - AR
—E-WFERAA-TNAHAEm FTEZE
ZENANEFERRYAREREN G
ZIEHRSEHBR AT REBRERM 2 E
F RERRBEREMAERALTHR TR
B o

BB S ERTHRAEZRE T AQF]
EETREFERREASEERBNRE
EHFEELBRATTREBREM 2 AR
BERIA B AR E QB2 ERNE
£ RBE -ftER KB BF 2HB ¥
BBMBARBH BEBEMIEMBERRK
AAASEPEE T AR ERERREAR
REBD 2 BRE ERBERTIEIR
() EE - () B IR B BB 3P 2
Yo i 8 R (i) Bt A 70 B2 4% s SR 93 11 B A
hAR S BEBR Az FHRHEZRS
EFoMBEHZBRAER BB R E &
ZURRBTHEEITRAZ10%BR -

REARRBIIRRE S & - (VRIRET S 7] 8
RHBREZBEAROBE  TEBHA
NAMEE A B BT H 210% 0 K(i)E
FEHEARERN T @A/ BERNEERT R
15 B AR 2 AB R B BT RO BT AR
HE THEBEAQRERNEEEEITR
MZ1% °

BIEZAR 2R MRS Z BE AT A
BEg WARERMABIRE 2BREST
XM1ETZER-

RZE—N\Fh_TE—NF+_A=1+—
B WEEIRHBREZ BB HTRD
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32.

33.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant of HK$5,600,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,000,000) was awarded to a subsidiary of the
Group by the PRC local government agencies as an
incentive primarily to encourage and support its business
development in local district. Under the terms of this
government grant, the grant would be recalled if the
subsidiary could not meet certain level of accumulated
Value-added-tax (“VAT”) and EIT payment during a period of
three years up to 2021.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a) Deemed step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary in 2019

During the year, Beijing Feiying has become a
subsidiary of the Group by a deemed step acquisition.

On 27 December 2019, Mr. Gao Fei who helds 33.5%
equity interest of Beijing Feiying committed to follow
the voting direction of the Group by virtue of a signed
Acting-in-Concert Agreement entered into between
a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Gao Fei with no
consideration. Since then, the Group has obtained the
control of Beijing Feiying in both of its shareholders’
and directors’ meetings.

32.

33.

BUAE # BY

NEEZ —FEK B A BV EP B E b BT #
1% H B 85,600,000 7T (A E ®
AR #5,000,00070) (EARE)  =E A
BRI BENEMZEBEE - BIEZK
BRI ZAER  WEBARIREBEE=F
T F-FHRANERERE T RE
B (MEER]) REEMBBATFOKE -
Al B S Bk E -

e SN

(8 REFE-NFEBKBELAINE
RAHE—LRIE

FARAERRED BBE - FREX
RASENKERTE -

RZEBE—-—NE+-_A=-++tHE 3H
AR B RIRES3.5%E - F 5
BEAESE—BHBARESRALE
VB REE BT HRRENER
BREASEREER - BFEER  K~E
EREIERARERRRESTSHNET
il
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continueq) 33. EKEB (&)

(a) Deemed step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary in 2019 (Continued)

(8 REFE-NFEBKBELAINE
RAHE—LWIE (F)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of

AURE B B3 AE R E & R B R & & )

Beijing Feiying as at the date of acquisition were: BEAYEE:
2019
Fair value
AEE
HK$’000
FET
Plant and equipment BB K& 61
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,134
Inventories FE 26
Trade and other receivables FE Y E 5 BR 3R T L FE WUAR 3R 9,014
Amount due from a related party U — B & AT 2 I8 14,513
Amount due from a non-controlling FEU — B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary — R IETEHIERE 2 FRIE 261
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBRSEEY 282
Trade and other payables FETE 5 IR R E B AR 3Kk (13,741)
Lease liabilities HE&E (1,134)
Amounts due to related parties JEfTREE AT 2 RIB (5,217)
Bank borrowing RITRE (4,440)
Net identifiable assets acquired Frik i M a4 Bl B EE 5B 759
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEEENEE:
Consideration for acquisition WERE =
Add: Non-controlling interests hn s FEE 1R A 6,764
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired B BT B ] B R B E R A (759)
Goodwill [ 6,005
HK$’000
FET
Net cash inflow in arising on acquisition RUEE R EEMNIRSRAFRE
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekREEFEY 282
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(a) Deemed step acquisition from associate to

subsidiary in 2019 (Continued)

Impairment testing

The goodwill of HK$6,005,000 arose from the deemed
step acquisition, is allocated to the cash generating
unit (“CGU”") of Beijing Feiying together with the right-
of-use assets of HK$1,144,000, for the impairment
testing conducted by management as at 31 December
2019 according to HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

The recoverable amount of Beijing Feiying CGU is
determined using the value-in-use calculation based on
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved
by the management covering a four-year period. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are
those regarding the discount rate, operating margin
and growth rates during the period as below.

Discount rate 20%
Operating margin -7% to 6%
Growth rates within 20% drop in first

the four-year period year and 5%
growth thereon

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to this CGU. The operating margin
and growth rates are determined based on the past
experience.

Under the value-in-use calculation, the recoverable
amount of the Beijing Feiying CGU as at 31 December
2019 is determined at approximately HK$1,200,000
which is less than the carrying amount of the CGU
by approximately HK$6,005,000. Impairment loss of
HK$6,005,000 was allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the goodwill allocated to the Beijing Feiying
CGU in the profit or loss during the year.

As a result of the above deemed step acquisition,
goodwill of HK$6,005,000 arose, being the difference
between the consideration and the fair values of
identifiable net assets acquired less the non-controlling
interests. However, management considered that such
goodwill is not expected to generate any economic
benefit or cash inflow in the future. Therefore, the
recoverable amount of this CGU is less than the
carrying amount which led to the recognition of
goodwill impairment.

33. XBEHF (&)
(@) REB-—NERBHBEERAINE

RAHE—LWIE (E)
AR

MR —_BE—NF+=-A=+—HERE
BIREB BT EREI6 [ EER
BEIETHRENZAMS KEE—
U B E A MY P22 4,588,00078 LB ]
& FAREEE,144,000/8 T D B =1t
ARENESESEMN ([ReEAS
fir]) °

ReELEMIERREN KD SRR
TEREREREIENREMNFH
M ETEEMBIR S RETERNNGER
BEFEEE- ﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁrﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁi
fRER Ty B HR R BE 3R & - Q& A K
BEXAEBAOMBR WX

AR IR = 20%
H ) 2 T%E6%
WEBRAMERE BFTR20%K

Hgi2R5%

FrERMIRERHREBAA IR BEEZ
ReEFEUABNETRR -K&Z
BHMEREERTIRIEBALRE
)'j\_':_o

REFEHEESE ItARERSE
FENR-_ZTE—NF+_A=+—
A/ Al U B & 58 & T A 491,200,000
B BREGEABMNMERERY
6,005,000/ 7T - E RN F W1z 5 B
{E/E5186,005,00078 7L LAR L o Bl 24t
ARERSEASMNOEER®RE-

AR ERSEE— S RE EEEE
6,005,000 7T » BN (8 22 4 Uk B8 ] =4
FIEEFERIELERER 2 AFEZ
EEH-AM SEERE BHEBED
BHBRITEELEMKLBENFNIES
mACEM ARG ELEBEMAATUK
O BARNERE EXERFTER
{Eo
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary in 2018

On 18 November 2018, the Group acquired 100% of
the equity instruments of EEF B AR HEEE R A F
(“Wanchuang”), a company whose principal activity is
manufacture and sales of electronic equipment. The
acquisition was made with the aims to expand the
Group’s existing scale of operation and enlarge the
Group’s market presences.

Wanchuang has not commenced business up to 31
December 2019.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
Wanchuang as at the date of acquisition were:

3. XEBEH/(E)

(b) R-ZFE—-/NFIRE—FHER T

RZF-NF+—-A+N\RB ~&EHE
WEEEEBAKRHEXEARLA (I8
Bl Z100% AT A -BAlzEE
EBRBEERHEETRE - ETI
BEREGCEAAKREZRBZER
B UBBAAEEZMZERR-

BEE-_E—hhFE+_A=+—H8 &

P NAGE SV

RIERH BRIZAHERNEEREA
BZRFER:

2018
Fair value
NTE
HK$’000
FET
Leasehold improvements HEXRE 5,807
Other receivables Hh FE U AR K 114
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBREEEY 283
Government grant IS 47 B (5,650)
Other payables HoAth JE AR (531)
Net identifiable assets acquired FritEg 2 Al a8 Bl & B 5 E 23
Consideration for acquisition WEEERE 23
HK$’000
FET
Consideration satisfied by REBAUTHREN

- Cash —B& 23

Net cash flow arising on acquisition WEEHEA RS REFH
— Cash consideration —-BeRE (23)
— Cash and cash equivalents - BERBESEEY 283

260
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for BRI BRETIR R E
— leasehold improvements —HEXE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

34.

35.

36.

HREE

RZE—NFh_FTE—NF+_A=1+—
B ANEETETRHIABE-

BAREE
RZE—NFA_TE—NF+_A=1+—

A RRERA M B mRHEBE 2 RE
BAREIENT

The Group
rEH
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
202 205
Bk FI 5 &

AEESMAEREREREREERIE
REEEE ([FH8]) B 2EEAR
ABEHZESRAERBEESHRE R
Bl 2 AR BEREEEBARMANE
TEZ L R A8 - R B BT 8 2 M
—BEERRBEF LR EMRK

AEEETHAZMBAREREY AT EK
RERBREERRBANETEIKE %
EZH B R RIARRE & KA Z BE R A%
BARBHNEEIHA REERNRERES -
AEBYZERBNTE 2 —BERE

H e SR
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37. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 37.

(a) Amounts due from related parties

Current Assets MENE E
— An entity controlled by Mr. Dai, —— &M B 2 7 3F 1A%
a non-controlling [i&% 3R & o A 5
shareholder of a subsidiary MER
— Mr. Gao Fei —=mEE
Note: The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

(b) Amounts due to related parties

Current Liabilities mEEE
— Entities controlled by —— MM B A F IEE R
a non-controlling % B8 17 ) B B 58
shareholder of a subsidiary (P 5Ei)
(Note i)
— Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”) — B/ NERE (8% E])
(Note i) (BfFED)

— B (MaEifkii)

— Ms. Xiao (Notes i and ii)

FRBERE
— 355 & (P &)

Non-current Liability
— Mr. Lau (Note iii)

Notes:

i) The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

ii) Ms. Xiao is considered as a related party, because she is
Mr. Lau’s spouse.

BEALZHEE

(a) BURBEANLZHE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
8,960 -
15,889 -
24,849 -

et : HEHAEER TERARENX

BE-

(b) BENBEEALZFHE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THET
4,412 4,808
15,344 6,493
5,040 -
24,796 11,301
12,224 11,866
37,020 23,167

B & -

) HHRAEEA THERARENE

i) MEATEAR/IELEZEBMBRR
—HEEAL
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37. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (Continuead)

(b) Amounts due to related parties (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Notes: (Continuead)

i) On 31 December 2018, Mr. Lau advanced
HK$13,680,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000)
to the Group which is due on 31 December 2021.
The borrowing is carried at amortised cost using
an imputed interest rate of 4.75% per annum.
The imputed interest portion of HK$1,814,000
was credited to other reserve under the equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

Related party transactions

V. BEALZHKE (&)

(b) ENEEALZHE(E)
PAsE s (4)

iy RZZT—NE+_A=+—0 2%
A 1R A 55 @1 24 (413,680,000 7T (48
B AR #12,000,0007T) * ER =
T —F+-A=+—BEH-{EE
FERGENERGFLT75%IEHHRAE
ABR o E 7 B 30 191,814,0007 7T
FEAKRRARIHEA AEIERER 2 H A
1# -

(c) BEALXSZ

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
Purchase from an entity M — R IEE R R 2
controlled by EREEE
non-controlling shareholder - 395
Commission income received B— R IEEH IR E TR 2
from an entity controlled by ERER 2 A2KA
non-controlling shareholder - 272

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the key management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 5 EIE A
Post-employment benefits BER1E R A

(d) FEEENBZHH
FRAEERHEMEIZERAEKEZ

P&
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FiET
4,243 4,046

56 54

4,299 4,100
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 January 2019

Changes from cash flows:
Repayment of lease liabilities
Advance from a related party

Repayment 1o a related party

Total changes from financing cash flows:

Other changes:
Addition of lease liabilities
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Imputed interest on loan from
a related party

Business combination

Exchange adjustments

Total other changes

At 31 December 2019

RE-2BEALZER
BE-2BEALZHE
BERLRERDAE:
A2D:
FUBERHE
REBEHEMS

RE-ZBEALZERZ
fEEMS

xHak
R
EHEHER

RZE-NE+ZA=1—H

38.

HAGERERERZME

BERELDELZABYHEK:

Amounts
due to
related Bank Lease
parties borrowing liabilities Total
Pt
BEAL
ZHE BITEE RERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THRT TR TER
23,167 - 93 23,260
- - (551) (551)
11,401 - - 11,401
(2,757) - - (2,757)
8,644 - (551) 8,093
- - 1,303 1,303
- - 29 29
576 - - 576
4,995 4,440 1,134 10,569
(362) 40 6 (316)
5,209 4,480 2,472 12,161
37,020 4,480 2,014 43,514
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATION 38. HEALZS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

(Continued)

At 1 January 2018

Changes from cash flows:

Advances from related parties

Repayments to related parties

Total changes from financing
cash flows:

Other changes:

Offsetting arrangement

Imputed interest
(Note 37(b)(iii)

Exchange adjustments

Total other changes

At 31 December 2018

RERBRZME

BERMETHELZABHER: (£)

Amounts due to Other
related parties borrowings Total
&1
ERE N it | HEMEE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAT
RZZE—N\F
—A—H 165 14,878 15,043
BEREED
KE@EALZ
R 45,270 - 45,270
EEEEAL
ZFRIE (20,608) - (20,608)
Fﬂ ﬁ E/Eu /)| % s
4R EE 24,662 - 24,662
ﬁ/{ z*z
38 22 BE - (14,134) (14,134)
HEFE
(Bt &E37(b)(iil) ) (1,814) - (1,814)
fE 5 A 154 (744) (590)
Hih B4 (1,660) (14,878) (16,538)
RZZE—N\F
+=A E+ 23,167 - 23,167
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39. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 9. ERATR=-E—NEFE+=H
POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 =+—HHEBBERRER
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FET FET
Non-current Asset EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 26,726 27,413
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H i JE U BR 3K 213 292
Amount due from FEU — B AR 2 E
a subsidiary 20,279 20,641
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 13 12
20,505 20,945
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables H fth JE T BR 3K 2,346 2,458
Amounts due to FES B A R 2 3B
subsidiaries 53,061 52,010
55,407 54,468
Net Current Liabilities REBEEFE (34,902) (33,528)

Total Assets less Current BWEERRBERS

Liabilities (8,176) (6,110)
Capital and Reserves EXRFE
Share capital [N 29 91,778 91,778
Reserves & 40 (99,954) (97,888)
(8,176) (6,110)
On behalf of the Board REXESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2 hEEE FTREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

FIE EF
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40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 40. 25 D T BE 44

Share  Contributed  Translation ~Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE B4R BERE BRERE RiER aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TEL TR Tix T
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv)
(Ft3Ei) (WsEi) (W &Eiii) (MisEiv)

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-F—-H 417,391 40,948 36,900 991 (594,336) (98,100)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (2,170) (2,170)
Lapse of share options BREXM - - - (991) 991 -

Exchange differences arising FREmELZEREE

on translation - - 2,388 - - 2,388
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\%¥

+-A=1+-8 417,391 40,948 39,288 - (595,519) (97,888)

Loss for the year FEER - - - - (2,469) (2,469)

Exchange differences arising ApEmEs 7 ENER
on translation - - 4083 - - 403

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=+-H 417,391 40,948 39,691 - (597,984) (99,954)
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40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(0

(i

(il

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which were all lapsed during the year 2018,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transaction in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

40. AR B (&)

B

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B aEERERACEBLEEABE LR
o

ERBBRABAMBRAREARARKER
AZHRARRESEARANEE AR
Bl U RS T BT AR (5 2 T B AR A 2R
P EE B 4EFFEE771,000,000 0% A 45 8% 24 i
DIRRZ RIBME 2 Z5

BERBERNARFMBRRENLER
BIERmEE 2 W EE-

BERERBRREERHEYN -_ZT-N\F2
A BREZ XRFE FENEEHM
BHRMTARUBRD BERN R XS
Z AR — SR -
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M. FTEHNHELARER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all are RAREEWB AR (HAFEMNILZE
incorporated with limited liability as follows: BBAR)EIBWT:

Proportion of

Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BET LNl S
RERKRE/ BRORAEE
WEARER S AL, B i B HARER HEMER L TEER
2019 2018
Express Fortune British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
ARERES EER100% 7T RERK
Express Fortune Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% 100%  Provision of management
Non-voting deferred services
HK$5,000,000 (Note a)
REARAF Bt LRER10ET REEERRS
BREERLTRH
5,000,000/ 7
(Mizra)
Fortune (Shanghai) International ~ Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000 100% 100%  Trading in mobile phones
Trading Co., Ltd. enterprise established in
the PRC
RE(LB)EREFERLE RPERUMOIEEELE 28,100,000% 7T BEVHER
Sifa Mining Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000 50.8% 50.8%  Exploration and extraction
ventures established in of mining resources
the PRC
BREE FA R B AR 3 A AR #1,000,0007 HREFARBESR

RERELR
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(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

ZEESHEREBRAA

Zhuhai Reminda

KBERE

Zhejiang Aoying

HTRR

Chongaing Yuanjia

EER

ot

Beijing Feiying

ERRE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

TR LR 3L 3 B

Hong Kong
Bt

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

RABK B RIEGELE
¥

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

B B P 37 B 7R
RELEDRE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

B B P 37 B 7R
BEMELE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

R BRI E )
AAMELE

. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BET
RERRE/
HEE

Ordinary HK$10,000
I 3EA%10,0005 T

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB40,000,000

AR #40,000,0007T

M. ETENHBLTER (£F)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

LG 5
BRITRAEE/
EMER 2

2019

100%

51%

70%

51%

33.5%
(Note b)

(HizEb)

2018

100%

51%

70%

51%

Principal activity

TEEH

Investment holding
REZK

Trading in mobile phones

EEBBE:

Trading in mobile phones

EEDBE:

Trading in mobile phones

Trading in second-hand
mobile phones and
provision of marketing
services

EE_FHHEHEREM
misHEERS
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41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(b)  The directors of the Company assessed that the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Beijing Feiying
as one shareholder of Beijing Feiying undertaken to vote in
concert with the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
since 27 December 2019. It enables the Group to control the
additional 33.5% voting rights in the shares of Beijing Feiying
(67% voting rights in aggregated).

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

M. ETENHBLTER (£F)

GEE

(a) BEROERETWEATKRBARARZ
BERWRBBARMERNRRASBEER
HERRAEH NG LRRANFER2
B2y R 2 BRI o

o

() ARAEFFEH AEEEENEELR
RENHEBEEYS REALEREN—F
BREEHEEAARNZEZENBARA
—E-hE+ At RR-BRE-
I 15 3 2 AN B8 B4 il At T R RE AR 17 AR BB A
33.5%MIREHE (BET6TRHIRERE) -

N B H B Express Fortune Holdings
Limited### * 1 E XFIR 2 BT E g
HEHARRIMERE-

¥ Express Fortune Holdings Limited=® 2
EEBRFEBIN PR T2 EBKHNTE
BCSL, S B AT & o

BB QAR FRRFERNEMEFIGEE
AEFE 5

ERMINEDEERREAEE 2 EREH
EEFEEEARFEZARAMNBAR-
E=ZRR SIEMHMERARZFHIEES
BRAEMBRITEK-
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MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statement, there is no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during
the financial year.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EABEEE AR AR (“Sifa Mining”), a 50.8% owned
subsidiary, ZXB M E R EBMEE B R 2 A (“Zhuhai
Reminda”), a 51% owned subsidiary, T8 % BRI
AR QA (“Zhejiang Aoying”), a 70% owned subsidiary, &
BirmBEREAR AR (“Chongging Yuanjia’), a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Company, 1t R E 8 & &l &
AR AT (“Beijing Feiying”), a 33.5% owned subsidiary
and Telefortune Group Holdings Limited (“Telefortune
Group”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). Summarised
financial information in relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining,
Zhuhai Reminda, Zhejiang Aoying, Chongqging Yuanjia,
Beijing Feiying and Telefortune Group, before intra-group
eliminations, are presented below:

42,

43.

BEERRG RSN ZERE
&

AR e M B mEARMEI7TAREE I RA
MR FEERER RN R EBE L FE
ZARBRERITNTEARRRESTRE
FHEEAED (TwERIEER) &M
BEXRG ZHHAK-

FEFMES

RNAFHB50.8% = 2 B AR E AR
BEEBRAR ([$28EXE]) - HH51%
BB ARKAEMERERMRES
RAR([FREBERE]) HEB70%REZR 2
M QR DREE BRI BR AR ([
TBE]) - HEBS1%EE B AREE
RRBREREERAR ((EEER]) - #
B33.5% 7 2 M B A B4t mOR & 45 el
RAERAR ([HERRE]) kEES1%#ER
ZHB AR REEEIERARAR ([KE
SEEEERIEE S RS ([FEEHIE
) BRIREEE HEERE ML
BE - BEEFER IARERRESEEIER
SR ETREERRQ R HAT 2
BERBEZHMOT
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

43. FEHIMERER (£)

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Y &

FE (BB, w8

2 AWA

DREFEEER
(E1]) i A

AR B s ST 2 LR -

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

rEEe (M)
SRR E

R+t=-—RA=+—H

MENEE
nEBRE

B{EFHE

RETIRIE S MRS

BB
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FET
(5,786) 4,740
(4,805) 8,216
(2,847) 2,332
(325) 79
3,678 3,643
(72,715) (67,875)
(69,037) (64,232)
(33,965) (31,602)
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhuhai Reminda

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash used in operating
activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Y &

FEER

2 AWA

DECEFEHEEE 2 BB

[F) S 428 Il M 2 S 2 AR B

BEt-A=1T—HLHEE

REESHAABRE

R+=RA=+—8
MENEE
FRBEE
nEBRE

B{EFHE

RETIRIE S MRS

43. FEHIMERER (£)

KL E

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
17 60
(1,076) (101)
(994) 88
(527) (50)
(29) (152)

74 1,022
213 217
(4,901) (4,859)
(4,614) (3,620)
(2,261) (1,773)

205



206

China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERAERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMHHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhejiang Aoying

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December
Cash generated from

operating activities
Cash used in investing activities
Cash generated from

financing activities

Net cash inflows

As at 31 December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

43. FEHIMERER (£)

WOT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
g 103,437 133,752
F 2 F 668 926
2HBUWA 601 807
5 Be 2 FE 42 ) 14 4 25 2 i A 200 278
MFEIE MRS A 2R B - -
BHEZE+-A=1+—HLEE

KT TSRS
148 131
REEBFARS (92) )

MEEEAEES
3 —
BE&RAFRE 59 129

R+=-—A=+-—H
REEE 4,032 3,470
ERBEE 33 2
mEaE (294) (302)
BEFE 3,771 3,170
E IR S 423 243




Annual Report 2019
S 207

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PR AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 43, I GIMRER (&)
Chongqing Yuanjia EFRE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

For the year ended 31 December BZE+_A=+—HLEE

Revenue W 6 410
Loss for the year FEEHE (7,127) (111)
Total comprehensive income 2B U A (7,239) (38)
Loss allocated to NCI SEEFEHMER BB (3,492) (54)
Dividends paid to NCI F] FE 128 Il 14 A 2 S A 2 AR B - -

For the year ended 31 December &HE+-A=+—HILEE

Cash used in operating activities g ERFFAR S (5,676) (10,320)
Cash generated from KREEHAEES

investing activities 2,240 8,170
Cash generated from BMEETBAERE

financing activities - 5,700
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be Rl RAFE (3,436) 3,550
As at 31 December BR+=A=+-—H
Current assets mENEE 13,205 35,692
Non-current assets EREBEE - 5,666
Current liabilities RBAaE (4,632) (27,786)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (5,600) (5,700)
Net assets BEFE 2,973 7,872

Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 5+ 3E % #1425 (8,565) (19)
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

43. FEHIMERER (£)

Beijing Feiying It ZRE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
For the period from 27 Bt+t-A=-t+tRAE=+-—H
to 31 December Hi RS
Revenue U 2 - N/A i@
Loss for the year FEEE (10) N/A T i@E
Total comprehensive income FHEBWA 35 N/A T~ iE
Loss allocated to NCI DEEEFETEH R 2 BE (6) N/A T~ iE
Dividends paid to NCI F] 3F 128 Il 1 A 2w AN 2 AR B = N/A T3 A
As at 31 December R+=-—B=+—H
Current assets REEE 24,307 N/A T~ iE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,206 N/A T iE
Current liabilities mE B E (24,287) N/A T iE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (469) N/A T~ iE
Net assets BEEFE 757 N/A 3@ A
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t IF1% # M 25 6,762 N/A T iE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+=-A=+—HILFE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Telefortune Group

For the period from 28 January
2019 (date of incorporation) to
31 December 2019

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the period from 28 January
2019 (date of incorporation) to
31 December 2019

Cash generated from
operating activities
Cash generated from
investing activities

Net cash inflows

As at 31 December

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

m=F-AF-A=1/R

(MR AS)E
—E-nE
+TZB=+—HHH

e 2

R

2EBHBA

DEEIFEHIERED Z EE

MRS N ZRE

H-ZE—-h&E—HA=+N\H
(MM A&
—E-NEF
+=ZB=+—B4H

REEHMEHRERE

REZDMEBRERE

B RAFRE

R+=—A=+—H

MENEE
mEAE

RETIFE S MRS

43. FFEEBIMER (F)

REEZH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
- N/A 38 A

(22) N/A 38 A
(22) N/A 38 A
(11) N/A 38 A

- N/A 38 A

40 N/A 3@ A

10 N/A T3 A

50 N/A T3 A

55 N/A TiE A

(67) N/A 3@ F
(12) N/A 3@ F
(11) N/A T~ iE
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44.

45.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The assessment of the impact of the Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in January 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the country. It
has delayed the negotiation between Beijing Feiying
and its major customer, Tencent, for the renewal of a
service agreement (“Agreement”) expired in April 2020.
Notwithstanding the expiration of the Agreement, Beijing
Feiying and Tencent are in discussion for a renewal, and
Beijing Feiying is still providing the relevant services as
stipulated in the Agreement to Tencent up to the date of this
report. However, there is no assurance that Beijing Feiying
and Tencent will be able to conclude on the renewal of a
new agreement. Tencent can stop procuring the services of
Beijing Feiying at any time. The termination of the services
provided by Beijing Feiying to Tencent may lead to the
decrease in revenue of the Group.

Other than the aforesaid, the outbreak of the COVID-19
is developing the pessimistic sentiment regarding the
macroeconomic on the worldwide wholesale and retail
environment, which would foreseeably have an adverse
impact on the Group’s business. It has been intensifying
and spreading across the PRC. It also has been weighing
on the PRC wholesale and retail markets. There is an
ongoing concerns regarding the development of mobile
phone markets, which hinders customers making sales
order. Moreover, in view of the weakening wholesale and
retail markets, customers would tend to make orders with
lower average selling price, which would possibly lower the
Group’s gross profit margin. The directors of the Company
will pay close attention to the latest development and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 July
2020.

44,

45.

BERREHN

Y -E-NFEFEMKBEFR ([COVID-19])
B &L

COVID-19RBR-_ZE=_TF-—ABE#
% —RIEH RIEHEED LW EET
PEHER - IRARBEEAFZZFPEMD
HEEREER -T2 -_ZFNAERNR
HinaEk ((zhzl) BEZHEEER -
ItRREHEEAIEER TUESE BE
EARAREBH L EREDRIEZIBZER
TE B EEERS - A HARFLL
RAREREANGRERTEEET S B
Aok & BE R 2 L SRR L R E A AR TS o 14
A A TR E 17 B AT IR 4 0 AR 75 1 4% 1E - A
AREEMAE BN ER D

Bk _EaiE 5N - COVID-198Y 1R 3 < R B K E
RERHBENTERRNEBBELELE
P - BRI TE R R RS B AN R B Y K X
THEgE- hERmEATEEENME
25t THPBERERTEMISEKES -
LUBRBHEETSERFEFELEE 1M
FABEEP TEHERE - o R E R
TEMSRE TP HERA T EFHEE
FEME EXNEREAKEEMNE K
NEESHTRTRMBERALF(AEY
AEBPBRRREEREITE-

HERSHBHRR

RAEMBREER-_TE-_TFLA+tH
BEFESHENMRET -



RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Write back of interest payables

Recovery of bad debts

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of inventories

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepayments paid to suppliers

Impairment loss on goodwill

Reversal of impairment loss recognised

in respect of prepayment to a supplier

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Gain on deregistration of an associate

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Yogs
HERK

£

Hip oA Yoz BB E
HERD HERA
THER
DEHERR 2 ER
e H S M

Yo ez iR
REERRAZHEBR

RARHERERR
BIEER
FRBERER 2 REEE

REERREMRZ
BEEE
REREEERRZ
RIEEE
mAHERS N2

BN REERZREER
HEFEZER

A -REER 2 ENRE
HRZAEBERD
SEIE R B 2 R R L A B R
BB ZAEBR
il 6
BEKA

BTG DA (B18) /8 H
FrEpiEe,/ (Fx)

2 (BR),/8H
fEfh -

AREEAA
EFe llid 5
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MBME

Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=1+-HLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FTHET FET FHET THER
157,903 110,638 7,436 216,104 108,455
(152,509) (108,801) (7,147) (213,966) (107,444)
5,394 1,837 289 2,138 1,011
3,071 2,257 903 (1,223) 350
(6,592) (2,645) (400) (11) (20)
(18,231) (15,242) (14,718) (14,928) (17,266)
(1,986) (905) (6) (647) -
- - - 11,922 -
- - - 14,083 -
- - - (1,221) (95)
(6,234) (6,340) (2,614) - -
- (84,240) (174,589) - -
- - (8,965) - (5,166)
- - - - (831)
- - (24,903) - -
- - - - (6,005)
- - - 363 118
(2,767) (798) (1,627) (23) (4,256)
- - - - 24
(1,302) (1,278) (1,208) - (605)
(28,647) (107,354) (227,838) 10,453 (32,741)
- 21,059 41,116 (148) (35)
(28,647) (86,295) (186,722) 10,305 (32,776)
(23,118) (49,807) (111,714) 7,799 (26,093)
(5,529) (36,488) (75,008) 2,506 (6,683)
(28,647) (86,295) (186,722) 10,305 (32,776)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets EERE

Total liabilities BEEE

Equity attributable to owners of RARGEBAEGER
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEVE I R

EERAE

At 31 December

W+=—BA=+—-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET TERT
354,834 246,543 44,876 85,245 70,937
(111,880) (102,131) (50,927) (77,809) (89,562)
242,954 144,412 (6,051) 7,436 (18,625)
165,373 106,663 31,409 40,587 13,992
77,581 37,749 (37,460) (33,151) (32,617)
242,954 144,412 (6,051) 7,436 (18,625)
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